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Vision

QOur Vision is to be the most innovative, green
maritime hub in the world by 2030,

Mission

To be the most customer focused, cost effective
and highly efficient provider of value driven cruise,
cargo services and related property development
services while providing satisfactory benefits to
stakeholders, including customers and employees.



SUSTAINABILITY
ritise the safety and well-being of our

We prio

pecple and environment.

EFFICIEHCY
We constantly aim to be more efficient and

&

effective.

RELIABILITY
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through on our commitments.

follow

INNOVATION
We explore new options and improved solutions

to exceed expectations in everything we do.

TEAMWORK

We work collaboratively towards the

achievement of shared goals.
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It is a small port, but more important than its size is the diversity of its
portfolio. All major cruise lines have chosen the Port of Bridgetown as
a port of call and from among them, an impressive listing have chosen

Barbados for homeporting operations.

The marine terminal handles all mapor categories of

carga including:

# Containers [incl. imports and exports of food and
beverage products, consumer goods such as
furniture, appliances, etc

e Liquid bulk {incl. petroleurn, molasses, ate )

# DOy bulk {incl. grain, cement, grawvel, etc

+ Break-bulk (incl. agricultural produce, and
ather goods imtended for the manufacturing,
processing and distribution sectors)

e Automalbiles

The Port of Bridgetown is International Shipping
and Port Facility Security (I15P5) compliant and

is rencwnied for its dependakility, reliability and
excellent safety record. i is the major point of entry
for goods used in the manufacturing and retail
sectors in Barbados and is dedicated to supporting
businesses in the export trade. State-of-the-art
carga handling facdilities and technologies support
the following services:

# Heceipt and delivery of cargo, utilising a variety of
carga handling equiprmert

» Storage of cargo awaiting delivery or shipment, in
covered warehouses or open storage

# Storage of refrigerated and frozen cargo

v Unstuffing/stuffing containers

# Sorting of cargo according to special

requirerments of consignesa

= Rental of cargo handling operations eguipment
e Pricrity access to block-stacked empty containers
as reguested by ship agents

BPI's sustainability principles guids its journiey to
becoming a world-class port. They are toc

¢ Build Long-Term Shareholder Walues

e Strengthen Strategic Alignment

Enhance Corporate Image

Improree Operating Quality and Efficiesncy
Enhance Market Competitiveness

Create a High-Performance Culturs

Enhance Execution Excellence

Build Growth-Enabling Infrastructure

¥y ¥ v¥r v wvw

These are the value enablers that are applisd
acrass the business and that allow the Company

to manage its risks and opportunities and ta
genarate value for all stakeholders. They also

guide BPI's relationships with the shareholder,
employeess, customers, business partners and
community groups. They take into account the
extarnal environment, the economic conditions and
changing innovation and technology drivers, as well
as the societal and ervironmental issues that hawve
an impact on business.
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Board of Directors 2021/22

The Most Honourables Mr. Denls Cadogan Bir. Dawld Jean—kMaries Sir Aoy Trotman
Peter Cdle FE Cagruty Charman Managing Diractor Direciar
Chairman

Capt. Ceorge H_M. Fergusson  Mrs. Liss Cale Mr. lain Thomsan k. Ricardo Mo Connsy
Dirackor Dirsechor Diractor Dirachor

Mz Janlce Brown Mr. RBeynoid Grant M= Sonks Foster
Dirackor Dira=char Dirwchor

CORPDRATE SECRETARY
M5 Keran Forda

AUDITSR
Pricawatsr houssCoopers S0L

BAMEERS
Banublic Bank (Barbados) Limited
First Citizans B2nk |Barsdos) Limited

ATTORMEY-AT-LAW
Gudngs Walton Payre & Co.
Balph Tha e, 0.
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Senior Management Team

M. Dawvid Jean- barke Mr. Kenneth Athierley Mir. Curtis Smilth Capt. EKarl Branch
Chiaf Exacutems SFhicer Edvisor, Projeds & Porf Spermbions Dwvisioral Managar, Human Divisianal Managar, Innovation
Fasources & Industrinl Relotions & Corporsta Sardices

d F Y ]

Mz Karen Forde Mr. lan Stewart Mir. Sheldon Layne Capt. Carl Consahmes
Finanoal Cortroller & Corporsta Divisioral Manager, Gparabions Managar, Tarminal Gpembcons Managar, Marine Sarioes &
Sacretary Harbour Mester

Mr. Tedroy Marshail Mrs. Michelle Webster Mirs. Charmalne Soo Chan Mrs. Mancy Solomon-Batson
Manngar, Enginasring Sarvices Eanagar, Maragamant Wanagar, Intarnal At & Guality Wanagar, Human Rescurces
Irfourrmiakicn Systams ASEAENCE At rabion

Mz Jane Brome Ms_ Keyshin BEarrow M= Maklits Enptiste Mr. Rommel Edwands
Managar, Business Devalopmant & Managamant Acoountant Financal &coountant kisnagar, Digital
Corpoests Commuancatians innovation & Devslopmant




Chairman’s
Review

This year was quite a remarkable one for
Barbados Port Inc. (BPI). Amidst continued
upheavals in the global economy there was
much for us to applaud in our 60th year of
operation. In many ways, our anniversary
celebrations signaled the beginning of the
next chapter in the incredible history of the
Port of Bridgetown.

The Most Honowrable Peier Odie FB
Chsirman.

Ewer since its official opening on May &, 1961, the
Port has remained at the heart of this nation,
enriching lives, empowering communities and
cantributing to the economy through the best of
times and the most difficult of times.

One of the achievements we are most prowd of
this year, is the attainment of the International
Oirganisation for Standardisation (150) 90012015
certification. The Port of Bridgetown is the first
seaport in English-speaking Caribbean to be
accredited this Quality Management System
[QME) designation. This achievement not

only enhances the Port's competitiveness as
a full service, international trade seaport, but
creates the framewark to standardize business
processes, enhance the guality of products and
services, improve operational effectiveness,
boost productivity, enhance customer
satisfaction, and better manage risks in the
ofrganization.

The M5, along with ouwr just completed

corporate rebrand, signals that we are better
aligmed with our vision and more in tune with
our strategic intent.
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Our 2021/22 financial results indicate that

we are once again on a growth path. BPl's
revenues for 2021/22 showed significant
recovery. The company registered a net '

income of $19.2 million at the end of the

financial year, aligned with profitability
levels realized pre-COVID.
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The results for cargo and cruiss operations wers
encouraging. At the end of the fiscal year March
31, 2032, the Port of Bridgetown had handled 1.3
million tonnes of cargo, up from 11 million tonnes
im the previous year. The number of twenty-foot-
aquivalent units [TEUs) of containerized cargo
handled increased from 82,459 to 100,936,

With the gradual eazing of restrictions and a restart
of sailings in 2021 at reduced passenger ocoupancy,
a total of 322 cruise calls were registared during the
pericd undar review. The total passenger arrivals
wierne registared at 240685

This year, we alzo celebrated the start of
transformatiee infrastructure projects as outlined

im our Masterplan 2020-203%0. Construction of

the mew, expanded Shallow Craught Marina was
initiatad in Fabruary 2022, The Project is expactad
to continue for a pericd of twenty-four (24} months
ard will indude the creation of 70 additional berths
far pleasure and commercial craft, new storage and
affice buildings, commercial unit shops, an open-air
market and restaurants, support buildings, improead
fual dock fadilities and swell-attenuating structures.

Refurbishment of the Speighstown Jetty was

im addition significanthy advanced. Its return to
service will bring an enhanced social exparience for
residents and visitors, expanded opportunities for
fishing and fisherfolk, for restaurants, bars, retail
shops and other business, those in keisure and
commercial sailing and marine recreation.

We are pleased to report
that 82% of our mission
critical deliverables were
either completed or in
progress at the end of the

reporting period.

EPL as part of its corparate social responsibility
effarts, celebrated the completion and official
handower of tha Pile Bay Fishing Facility to the
community in May 2021,

We are pleased to report that B2% of our mission
critical defverables were either completad ar in
progress at the end of the reparting pericd.

Cur new corporate strategy was articulated inoouwr
Business Plan 2021-2026, completed in October
2021, Mew partnarships, new irvestments in
commercial activity, infrastructural and capacity
expansion and upgrades, investment inoour
employees through upskilling and retooling,
transitioning to new digital platforms, global
benchmarking of best practices, innovation and
techrological developrment, were laid as the planks
on which the contermporary Port is being bauilt.

In support of cur transshiprment thrust and
development of the Port of Bridgetown as a
Southern Logistics hub, we are enhancing our
terminal infrastructure with the creation of a new
cargo berth of approcimately 1,200 ft, with an
adjoining apron of 10 acres of container lay down
area, We are boosting ouwr cargo handling capacity
weith the installation of two post-Panamax cranes on
the new berth. We ara aiming to generate increased
throughput from Africa ta South America via
Barbados by focusing on expanding relations with
tihe Part of Mombassa, Kenya and the Port of Termna
Chana through Sister Port agreamenits.

We are serioushy committed to becoming the most
innowative gresn maritimea hub in the veorld beye 2030,

Barbados has set national targets for carbon
reutrality as we navigate the impact of the dimatea
crisis on small island developing states. Prime
Minister Mia Amor Mottdey made the national
position clear an the global stage afforded Barbados
at thie COP Conference in Glasgow. At the Part, owr
commitment to reducing our carbon footprint means
all nevw aguipmant must mest our energy standards
far renewables. We are already praducing 15% of owr
total electricity corsumption and by 2005, we expect
to preduce close to S0% of total corsumption. In
addition, we expect to 2dd another five new ybrid
straddle carriers to our container handling fleet.



Comiplamentany to the acquisition of cean enargy
eguipment, we hawve imvested in photowaltaics as

an alternative power saurce, an effort which will be
Eoosted with the installation of a new waste to enengy
fadility, s=t to be operational at the end of 2023

On January 1, 2022, the cruise terminal located

at the Port of Bridgetown, transitioned from
Bridgetown Cruise Terminals Inc. (BCTI) o BRI,
ending a 2B-year-ald agreement. This followed a
decision by BCTI not to renaw its lease. To ensure a
seamless transfar, given that this took place during
the peak cruise season, management of BCTI

and BPl warked closely im coordinating matters
which needed to be addressad, including ongoing
maintenamnce, staffing requirerments, tenant and
lease arrangements and management oversight.

The new financial year similarly will usher in some
chamges in our carga terminal operations. & decision
has been talken by the Board of Directors that BPI
should take over respansibility for the provision of
stevedaring services, currenthy provided by private
stevadaring companies.

Howewar, following this decision, the Shipping
Association of Barbados requested an extension of
the current arrangements, citing the impact of the
COWID-12 pandemic on the stesedoring companies.
This reguest is under consideration.

Im the meantime, management is proceeding with
plans to take over the services, engaging in general
cormmunications to the shipping lines which call at
Barbados and developing operational plans.

I lin= with efforts to ensure tha highest standards
af ethics and professionalism, BRI initiated the
process of formalising its corporate governance
structure to improve imestor confidence, reduce
the cost of capital and increase transparency. &
number of policies wera dewveloped and approved
by the Board of Directors in support of this

thrust: Whistleblower Policy, Custormer Service
Charter, Erevironmental, Social, Health and Safety
[ESHS} Policy Staterment and Ervironmental and
Social Management System (ESMS5L A Quality
Management Systern Policy Statement was also
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developed, outlining BPI's commitmeant to fostering
a corporate cublture of excellence in guality and
CUstomer service. Awarenaess sessions are planned
for internal and external stakehalders.

Cur achisverments throwghouwt the course of this
mast trying year, hawve been buoyead by support
from many organizations and individuals who
heree partnered with us. We conwvey our sincerest
appreciation to

The Honourable Mia Amor Mottley, @0 MLP, Prime
Minister of Barbados

The Government and People of Barbados

Senator The Honourable Lisa Cummins, Minister of
Towrism and International Transport

The Honourable Kirk Humphrey, M., Minister of
People Empowerment and Elder Affairs
Management and staff of Barbados Port Inc.
Shipping Association of Barbados

The Barbados Workers” Union

Barbados Tourism Marketing Inc.

Barbados Tourism Investrment Inc

Barbados Customs Brokers and Clerks Association
Bridgetoam Cruise Terminal Inc.

Town and Country Development Planning Office
Cpastal fone Management Unit

Customs and Excise Department

Royal Barbados Police Force

Immigration Department

Ministry of Towrism and International Transport
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade
Ministry of Small Business, Entreprensurship and
Commernce

Ministry of Finance, Ecomomic Affairs and Investment
Ministry of Health and Wallness

Ministry of Agricufture and Food Security

Ministry of Transport, Works and Maintenance

Chc et

The Most Honourabole Peter Cidle FB
Chairman
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Financial
Performance
Review

Barbados Port Inc.'s revenues for 2021,22 showed
significant recovery in keeping with the emergence
from lockdowns and restricted activity which
spanned the entire yvear prior as a result of the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.
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Operating income totaled $102.2 million, a 26%
increase on prior year results of $31.2 million. Al

With the gradual restart of commercial cruising.
passenger levy revenues came in at $3.0 million,

maj revenue areas showed improved performance . appraximately one-third of those earned pre-CONWID,

during the pericd. Carngo revenwes climbed to

EPI registered a net income of $19.2 million at the

£75.9 million, the highest in the last five years, with end of the financial year, aligned with profitability
tonnages transiting the Port increasing by 19% over realized pre-CCVI DL

202002 and vessel calls expanding 29%.

TABLE 1: EREAK DOWHN OF REVENUE [$)

2008
Cargo Handling E4.079637
Excess Storage N e 1]
Marine Revenus 0060048
Passenger Lewy B 575 BOT
oOther 0,265,384
Sub-total 35,024,185
Oither Operating ncome 3,415,007
TOTAL 98,533,193

Operating Expenses increased by $3.5 million or
5%. The most significant increases were noted in:
Staff costs for overtime incurred as the Pandemic
impacted manning kevels; Other Expensas such
as labour meads and other costs in ralation to the
Walcanic ash-fall clean-up; Professional Fees and
ather costs associated with the resumption of
regular operations.

FIGURE 1:OPERATING EXPENSES 201718 TO

205 2020 2020 222
63,802, 3509 o 340 Dl 02 336922 TL5,BT0085
1Tie T 2931683 1656, 203777
9856829 10,279,581 T5EL 424 8.815987
3,910,000 9,553,318 - 2865775

8973,650 0,588,030 76E1435 10,255 419
93,322,055 101,692,562 73,256,975 100,120,043
2867234 3391317 2,040.884 2,055,934
96,183,283 105,083,873 81,306, 102,775,377

Total comprehensive income rose to $1E.5 million
from %2.5 million due to the increase in profit
from operations offset by decreases from re-
measurement of retirement abligations.

FIGURE Z: PROFIT/[LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

202122 ($) 201718 TO 202122 (§)
OO0 S0
B0 B0 V. PR P00
BN
W B kg e
o e S T D
SIS
S0,000,507 IS0
fe LT TN EAORDG
o I AEE

! e Fi] Fiie] W %3

= EA= T



Statement of
Financial Position

Owverview

The financial pasition of Barbados Port Inc. as at
March 31, 2022 showed an increass in total assets
and current liabilities, whilst long-term liabilities
decraased.

The F12.3 million increase in current assets is
attributable micst significantly to increases in

cash and accounts receivable. Thesa increases are
directhy related to the increase in operational activity
comparad to prior year levels,

Included in non-current assets are

. Pension Plan asset surplus of $4.9 million in the
current financial year; and

Il. Increases in both Capital Works in Progress and
Property, Plant and Equiprment.

Current liabilities have increased as the maratarium on
prirccipal repayment of the $100 milion MOB Capital
Markets [Barbados) Limited Bond is ending: thea first
quarterhy principal repayment is duwe Junse 20072

ANMNUAL REPORT 2021722 19

The decrease in long-term liabilities is dus ta
repay ment of existing bonds and finance leases.

Liquidity

EPI realised a working capital surplus of 3132
million, holding steady on the prior year pasition of
£122 million. The quick ratio decreased to 16 from
2.3 in 2021, due ta an increase in current liabilities.

Activity

With the return to regular operations, BRIl met its
target of the collection of cutstanding recensables
in under 35 days, but this year it took 30 days,
significantly longer than the 24 days on average in

2020/21.

Leverage

The Company remains highly leveraged,
characteristic of its highly capital-intensive nature.
The debt to equity ratic was 0611, an improvement
over the previous year’s 0721 Finance costs were
£74 million for the current year compared to $8.5
millicn for the previous year.

Key financial position balances and ratios are
reported belows

Table 2: STATEMENT OF POSITION HICHLICHTS (5 millicn)

2018
Current Assets 513
Sccounts Receivable 202
Hon-current assets 33535
Total Assets I6E. 48
Current Liabilities F288
Long-term Liakilities #7838
Total Equity 1072
Total Liabilities & Equity 368 48
working Capital 3325
Average Receivables 1047
Total Debt 17776
Debt/Equity 0.3
Current Ratio m
Days to Collect Receivables ol ot

20015 2020 202 202F
2T T4 2483 3718
6.8 E0l 219 10.2%
200.49 3003 30Tz 150
228.66 348.05 335.55 35229
30.035 Lyien 10084 WA
N T21.54 24775 a5l
a7z 180944 Toa8s 2151
328.66 34B8.05 335.54% 352 X9
-0.BE 10E7 1295 1591
D45 B3 410 623
9.9% 158.61 E5.59 133.78
084 .84 .68 nE=

L i) 129 220 1&0
LZO5 IETE 2401 2004
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Dividend to
Shareholder

The approved BPI dividend policy includes Inc. continuead to contribute through fulfilment of its
cansideration of Sowernment-related corporate corporate sacial responsibilities.
social responsibilities as part of dividend payment.

Curing the financial year ended March 31, 2022,
Mo cash dividend has been declared for the financial Barbados Port Inc. contributed to Governmental
year ended March 31, 2022 however, Barbadas Part institutions as folloess:

AMOUNT COMTRIEUTED

Pile Bay Fishing Facility $515,026.37
Ministry of Ervironment and Mational Beautification 3252 370,00
Lewis Wickham Boardwalk 20,800,580
Milli Ifill Fish Market Facility M4100.00
Queen Elizabeth Hospital £2.533.00
Ministry of Education, Technolagical and Vocational Training 8241750
Ministry of Maritime Affairs & the Blue Economy $18,59028
The Mational Assistance Board 3115293
TOTAL £515,302 .94

Remuneration Paid To Each Board Director Including The Value OFf Benefits In Kind

POSITION REMUNERATIOM
Chairman 1 $18,000.00
Other Board Members 10 £72,000.00
TOTAL £90,000.00

Remuneration Paid To Senior Management Including All Benefits In Kind

POSITION REMUMNERATION
Executive Management g 31605856
Managers & Assistant Managers i) 3 233646545

TOTAL { 3,452,524.02



Fiscal Risk Report

A revview of the fiscal risks of Barbados Port Inc. {BPI)
far the financial year ended Marnch 31, 2022 and the
actions takean to mitigate them is noted below.

Uncompensated Quasi-fiscal Activities
As agreed by its Board, BP| considers the cost of
Covernment related payments which fall under
carporate social responsibilities to be part of its
dividend payment to its ocwners.

Hindrance to Self-regulation

The Board of Directors of Barbados Port Inc. has
approwed a proposal to institute the Tariff Review
ard Service Quality Committes. The next step

will be to seek the permission of Cabinet with the
support of the Ministry of Tourism and International

Tramspaort.

Labour Market Policies

Continuous dialogue was held with the Barbados
Workers' Union throughaut the year. However, no
new agresments have baen enterad irto.

Request for Government Guarantee
by Financing Institutions

Mo new financing agreements reguiring a
Government Guarantese have been enterad into

during the year.

Capital Intensive Mature of
Barbados Port Inc.

Barbados Port Inc. adhered to a robust
maintenamnce program to prolong the life of its
equiprmeant.

ANMNUAL REPORT 2021722 X

Regional Competition

A Port Community System [PCS) project, initiated

in March 2021 continues to advance and is expected
to significantly boost the Port's competitiveness on
completion. The objective of this project will be to
improve operational efficiency and transparency in
the goods clearances and trading processes at the
Port of Bridgetown; while reducing turnarnound time
and casts within the supply chain.

Alternative Cargo Service Providers

EBPI =ought to enhance its custormer service delivery
weith the offering of new online and automated
services. Additions and improvement to such
systems inclede extension of the ePayment Portal
to allow customers with prepayment accounts

to conduct transactions against these e-wallet
BCCOUNLS.

Decline in Vessel Calls due to

increased Cargo Consolidation and the
Deployment of Larger Cruise and

Cargo Vessels

EPlwas unable to aggressively market and promote
the Part of Bridgetown at conferences and other
alfiances as the effects of COVID-19 prevented
significant participation in those events.
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Mission Critical Deliverables

IN PROCESS COMPLETED NCOIMGC

ENHANCED PORT .Expanu:l and improve the CCTV
SECURITY distributicn ﬂ

Install Passive IR motion detectors E
Acguire an additional Container

Scanmner, and fie the existing

SCANMErs

Cevelop a protocol for 100%

scanning and pre-scanning of

containers

Work with Royal Barbados Police

Force to support a K9 unit

Cutfit a Cormmand Centre

Resource the Security Department
as needed

Imstall Pallet Scanner at Shed 2

00 O O

Truth Verification Test [TWT) TWT tests are
ﬂ rmzndatory for new
hires.

STRATEGIC Conduct a Strategic Planning
PLANNING it el G

Update the Master Plan

I Complete the Business Plan

Strengthen the Brand A mew corporate
brand was umneiled
May 2021 and
transition to new
visual identity
continues.

O 000

CRUISE SERVICE Hee_twﬂ:h F_cq.'ulstunremlnme
concemms and solicit ideas for

SEMVIDS BTpIoverments.

Produce branded directional

signage to fadlitate movernent of

- PASSEMYErs

Ceploy the tram system to facilitate G
mowament of passengers beteeen

Introduce a mew taxi dispatch
system

Enhance Tour dispatch systems

Q0
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N PROCESS COMPLETED OROOIRG

GARGOD Meet all customers in the servioe

chain to understand concems
OPERATIONS and solicit ideas for service G
ENHANCEMENT improvements

Establish a Customer Charter .ﬂ
|I Il | Basad on the mnge of

consultations, refine the sendce

standands and KPIs for Barbadios

Port Inc

Extend the use of Octopi to Shed

4 operations, along with a gueuing

systEm

Extend the wse of Ootopi for

container vessel operations in the ﬁ'

area of Ship Planning

Install 3 new Gantry crane

0 O

Order new Straddie Carriers [six
meeded - one per anmnum)

L

brokered Bond lsswe

Renegotiate Finance Lease with
AMSA Memchant Bank which hasa
balance of Bds $55.5 million as at
June 2018

Revise the current Proocuremsnt
rules to brimg them in line with
the new mandate of Government
pertaiming to “carding of ™ amd
consistent with the regional
approach to procurement as
contained in the Draft Protoool on
Public Procurement for Caribbean
Commumnity

Hevise Receivables Policy to
encourage timely payment and to
dieter owerhy late or non-payment of
receivables

STAFF Settle wage/salaries increases with

EMPOWERMENT ~ ™heBWU

Besolve and negotiate long
outstanding increments for Clerical ﬁ
Division with the BWL

Complete Job Evaluation ﬁ

0 000

<

o

Implement the Performance

Appraizal and Performance

Management/incentive Schems, to 5‘
complemeant the Customer Charter

Programme

Complete the culture reform

programme to address deep a
segted cultural attibedes that affect

perfomance and worker attitude

Estabdish a Traiming Centre in

conjunction with the CMU, TVET &

and 51PI
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LEVER AGING
TECHNOLOGY

LEGAL

2

PROJECTS

Cevelop IMO Maritime Single
Windionar

IH PROCESS

COMPLETED

OHCOIMGC

Wiork with the Attorneys

to complete the process of

determining the Global Ports and

the Barth & contracts - nduding

recognition of damages or other
s

Mest and address the arbitration
issue that is currently in abeyanos.
Arrive at new terms in the
management arrangement with
Bridgetown Cruise Terminal [nc.,
addressing the following:
Agreement omwhen the lease ends,
The contimuing head tax split, and
review of the maintenance
STanQements

Revienss the beief on the Fish of
Barbados Case. The injunction
against the Port with respect to
retaking possession of waterfront
space at the Flour Mill has
continued to prevent the Port
from armvineg at a longer term use
of at least Z — & aores at the Flour
Mill. Though the injection relates
to some 352550 m of land, the
location prevents access to a large
ar=a of land behind it. This land has
been earmarked for development
into @ much-needed expanded
boat repair yard

Meet the deadlines set by MO to
address findings of the MO Audit.
BPFI shall sponsor legal resowrces to
be based in the Chief Parliamentary
Counsels Office, to assist in
draffting the requite legislation that
will ensure compliance with the
Port-specific and other nineteen
(M) IMO findings
Complete the vesting process of
lands in B as per the Barbados

Port Inc. [Westing of Assets and
Transfer of Management Act)

Management and
operation of the
Cruise Terminal
transitioned to BP
effective danuary |,
2022,

BF i= currenthy
wworking with
Mimistry of Housing
and Lands to
complete this
process of leasing
the lands (100+
acres] in the

E=stablish & joint venture to
develop the & acres at South
Paint Bghthouse, as a sustainable
commercial indtiative



PROJECTS

CORPORATE
SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

&

Complete the developmesnt of
Ragged Point Lighthouse and
estabdish 3 commercal tourism
based joint venture at this location

Azsescvighility of Morth Point
Lighthouse for Development

Complete the planning process,
engineefing work and business
negotiation, to kick-off the Sugar
Paoint Cruise facility

Im consultation with the Coastal
Zome Management Unit, complete
engineering designs and complete
the ships berthed offshore at
Speightstowm.

Repairfrefurbish the Existing
Sp=ighstown Jetty repairs and
upgrade to the Speightstoam Jetty
to miake it ready to accommodate
tender vesssals from cruise

Expand berthing capacity at the
Shallowy Draught [project design,
permitting, firencing, execution)

Development of a new Bulk
Hamdlimg Barth to handling 100%
export fimport of aggregate in
support of the local construction
industry.

Install Photovoltaic Solar Pamels at
BCTI, Old Mechanical Workshop
and the Medhanical Shed

Imstallaticn of Mew Waste - Energy
Imcinerator

Constructicn of a new Cargo
Freight Station and Central
Contaimer Exarmination Facility

Adopt fishing villages in Barbados,
and assist in developing the
associated infrastrecture and
facilities, commencing with Pile Bay
and Weston

IH PROCESS

O ¢ 0 0 O
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COMPLETED

THGOING

This project has
been discontinusd.

Project has been
pausad in fawour of
imeestment in other
pricrity projects.

Project is nearing
comipletion

Project started
Februany 2022
Financing from DB
Irwest.

Project is im design
stage. Potential
fimancing from IDB
Invest.

Partial financing
through IDB krivest.

completed and
subrmitted to

Teren Planining

options. Project is
eammarked as a PPR.




|
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A comparison of the performance of the entity with the Statement of Corporate Intent and the Annual
Plan is noted below:

STRATEGIC

COBIECTIVE

Measure Return on equity measures the company's profitability by indicating how much

profit is generated with the money the shareholder has invested.
2021-22 Target  2021-22 Projected  2021-22 Actual Rationale

Return on O = 0% Whilst the effects of COAID-19

Equity are still impacting cruise
activity; carga activity almeast
returmed to pre-COVID levels.

STRATEGIC To achiewe and maintain positiv rking capital

QBIECTIVE
Two key components must be managed in order to maintain a positive working
capital -&ccounts Receivable and Accounts Payable. Accounts Receivable turnower
measures how guickly invoice payments are received and Accounts Payable
turncver measure how guickly current liakilities are paid. & good balance between
the two measures will assist with realizing positive working capital.

2021-22 Target  2021-22 Projected  2021-22 Actual Rationale
Receivable 15 days 15 dianys 2% days With the gradual return of
Turnowver cruise pperations, cruise
customers still have high
outstanding balances at year
end ta be cleared.
Payable 15 days L days ¥ days EP sought to maximize its
Turnover cashflow position during the
yEar.
STRATEGIC To develop s egic cruise partnerships
OBIECTIVE
Measure [ Cruise arrivals per year translate into cruise passenger arrivals. The measure looks
| at how many more vessels we can attract to come to Barbados annually.
2021-2Z Target 2021-22 Projected  2021-22 Actual Rationale
% Growth in = oo =100% Limited cruise activity
Cruise Arrivals returmed after a twao year
hiatus due to the effects of

COWID-150



STRATEGIC
OBIECTIVE
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To develop strategic transshipment alliances

Transhipment carge is cargo landing in Barbados but intended for other countries.

with the expanding of the Panama Camnal and other factors, opportunities exist for
increased revenues in more of this cargo. This measure is analyzed by looking at

=% Growwth in

transshipment

the increased number of TEUs handled annually.
2021-22 Target 2021-22 Projected 2021-22 Actual
5% =t o

Rationale
There was an increase in
transshipment containers
being handled by Tropical
Shipping, CMA-CGM and
Caribbean Feeder Sarvices.
The percentage refers to
outbound containers
only [T.036 TEUs in 2021722
comipared to 3,679 TELS in
2020/20).

STRATEGIC To increase productivity on Cranes
OBIECTIVE

MMEMWHE number of mowves an operator can make an
howur. Movements can measure how efficiently the Port is at handling cargo on a

Crane Moves
per Hour —
Gantry 1
Crane Moves

per Hour —
Gantry 2

Crane Moves
per Hour —
Gantry 3

Crane Moves
per Hour —
Mobile

wessel and the time a ship spends in the Port.
2021-22 Target 2021-22 Projected 2021-22 Actual
25 n/a n/a

Rationale
This Crane was removed from
sarvice during the period
under review:.

There were some less-
saasoned operators who gave
an awerage betweean 24 to 24
rmowes. per hour.
However, the productivity
rate was also hampered by
the lack of straddle carriers
available to move containers
to and from the crane
position

Curt of service August 2020 to
bAarch 31, 2021



STRATEGIC
OBJIECTIVE

To reduce equipment dewntime

mummmnmﬂumﬂﬂmmmﬂﬁ
umuhﬂlhwkdunmmlmﬂmdmﬂmmmﬂmmﬂmﬂn
‘work time. Downtime has a significant impact on efficiency and vessel turnover.

202122 Target 2021-22 Projected 20271-22 Actual Raticnale

Reduce by 5% Reduce by 5% Imcreased 4% This information is related to
three Ship to Shore cranes.

This cverall increase in
downitime from the prios
period, was heavily influenced
by the LHM crane which
remained out of service from
April 2020 to Septemibsar 2021
awaiting repairs.

The two neswer cranes

IR2E1 and CC2081 which
accourted for the magority

of the utilization for vessel
activity during the periad, had
miore satisfactory downtime
statistics when considered on
their awm.

Gantry Crame [RID4 was
rermoed from service

with structural repairs and
inspections to be carned out. A
propasal for refurbishment of
this crane was provided, aimed
at profonging its usseful life
This is to be considered against
decommissioning during the
20221073 Financial year.
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Operational
Performance
Review

Cargo Operations

With the gradual restart and opening of economies a
year after COVID-19 surfaced, the Port of Bridgetown
during the period April 2021 to March 2022, registered
1,112 vessel calls. This 29% increase in calls against
the previous year, was buoyed by the restart of
commercial cruising, which moved from 47 calls in the
previous year to 324,

Vessel calls at the Bulk Handling Facility grew 33%
while calls of tankers increased from 144 to 159.
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TAELE 3: BREAKDOWHN OF VESSEL CALLS BY MAJOR CATEGORY (201213 TO 2021/22)

wessel Calls 2002713 2013s 200415 201506 200617 2017ME8 2803 201920 2020421 202022
Cruise 357 374 332 &2 453 493 £20 A4l &7 324
Ceneral Cargo
- Deep Water
Harbowur 035 443 454 490 G40 £36 70 £87 £BZ &ial
General Cargo -
Shallow Draught 105 o9 105 125 123 121 m 1035 Gig =
Cargo - Bulk
Handlimg Facility
{inc PF) 14 15 7 i) o G T2 1 15 20
Bulk Sugar 2 2 2 1 2 2
bilasses 10 7 T 13 2 7 7
Cargo - Cement
Plant 83 124 P 71 e a5 a4 o =] 52
Tankesrs 143 122 123 135 155 157 155 ™= Tda 158
Total Calls Tz 1,181 117& 1,276 1,371 1..371 1,265 1,280 B&2 112
% Change =T.35% 526% -0.59% B.E9% TS  000% -TT3% 115956 -32.7 Z25.0%
Tonnage Handled FICURE 3: TOTAL CARGO (TONMES)
Total canga walumes handled
wias | 235 657 tonnies. This activity 600,000
represented an increasa of B L3700 136522 1385857
Fgainst tonnage handled for the 1I5515
pariod April 2020 ta March 2021 —— TN
[see Figure 3), restorirg activity to
just gightly under pre-CCVID levels. o
800,000
A breakdown of tonnage handled
shows 2 13% increase in imports A Rl
against 2020/21. Import wvolurmes at
L1395 tonnes represanted 76%
af the owverall tonnage handled. 2o0,000
. a
Barbados exports totaling e SR S i R
14B.9TT tonnes was higher than
the 135310 tonnes exported in
the prewvious year but still £% 165,008 tonmes this year, slightly B89% of all tonnaga handled.
dawn from pre-COVID egparts above the 201920 levels. Last year's containerized figure
of 155 78& tonnes in 2019720, The Total containerized tonnage rapresented 90% of the owvarall
export tonnage represented handled across all categaories of tannage handled.
% of the tonnage handled for imports, exports, transhipment
022 [see Table 5] and shifted cargo was 1,185,309 EP continues to wark with
tonnes in 2021122 as compared importers to assist in resalving
Transhipment cargo tonnage to TOWI0S tonnes in 2020/21. any issuss affecting the delivery

doublad from 32 401 tonmes to Containerized cargo represented of cargo from the Port.
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Bulk Cargo Handled

Bulk Cargo handled this year was at about the same  registering at 586,089 tonnes, some 68% of all
leve| as that handled in the previous year (see Table  bulk cargo handled this year. The second largest
5] Some 881,053 tonnes were handled in 2021/22 as wvalumes handled were cement, at 148,873 tonnes
cormparad to 880,318 tonnes last year. Petroleum representing T'% of the cargo handled.

products continued to dominate this segment,

TABLE 5: BREAKDOWHN OF BULK CARCO HANDLED BY TYPE 201213 - 2021/22 [ TOMMNES)
Commiodity 2orzfim  2003hs  2o0&h1s 2o0shE 20T 2o1The 20089 2015/20 2030f 20mf22

Sugar 2075 H.454 12,593 8783 &008 5775 4. 500 004 £ L]
Molasses 45,254 TTEI0 41,74 ZB]51 7400 54398 55,528 38,067 Te 05T 45,045
Fish Gil/
Margarine/Fat 1,498 ¥ ] L] §] ] o ¥] i} L]
Grain/agribullc E2.568 4108 72,20 84212 5,413 T4 BO.TTE TR S 73T 40,235
Fertilizer TOO 1900 500 it 8] ] o K] 0 L]
Petrolewm
Products G0Z Ao eI3685 58316 6L3502 599TA e350M B2367T3  GPh46d 406,284  Soa 0RO
Limestone 3700 10,500 1,000 a 8] ] 1] K] 150 L]
Cement Q47T 167572 1305Ts  1383E 146350 136952 2NTue 2087497 le4e38  WEBETS
Gypsum/
Pozzolan Gravel 16200 36,527 8.0 4,02 B.308 12,51 .05 105049 9,595 12225
Cement Plant
Other 11,819 9354 ] 130 15146 2043 TEN 1.893 63514 L]
Iron Cre 9a7 1864 993 25 1974 2,586 3758 1,794 23l 1,805
Dwh other® 3079 0846 3363 38045 12,000 T2 4078 L2203 64710 35,882
Total GBB4,383 973,030 853,431 572,335 O0Z,328 375,004 1,0Z3.964% 1,071,536 880,313  &81,053
% Change -6.23% W63 -12.83% T3.93% -T. 205 B.OTH SU0 % 4 68 -T7.88%: 0.08%
e —
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Container Traffic

The Port of Bridgetown handled 101936 TEUs during  comipared to 27 in the previous year, 2020/21. The
the year, a 2Th increase owver last year's volume of Truck Turnarownd Time increased from 37 minutes
84110 TEUs (See Table 6). Of the total TEUs handled,  in 202021 to an average of 50 minutes. The Dwell
£1% {41,736 TEUs]) were imparts while E.4% were full Tirme for full reefer containers directly delivered
exports comprising mainhy manufactured and other  moved from 3 days in 2020021 to Z days in 202122,

carga, including recycled product. Some 36891 wehile the Dwell Time for dry containers dirsctly
TEUs= (26%) were outbound empty containers. deliwvered was reduced from B days to & days this

year. The Dhwell Time for Less than Container Load
The Port's key performance indicatars [KPIs) are (LCL) containers being stripped decreasad slightly
tracked through OCTOR, the Terminal Operating from 5 days to I days.

System (See Table 7). This year, Mowes Per Hour!
Cranme averaged 26 moves (5ee Figure 4] when

TABLE & BREAKDOWN OF COMTAIMERS [TEUS] BY STATUS 201213 - 2021/22
TEUs Handled 201213 200314 200¢ns 2onshe 2onehT 2o0mhe 2ehs 201920 202047 202022

Inbound Laden 34345 34426 34TIZ ITI0 3MEEI 38.BOT AR 404 3T441 41796

Inbound Empty TB3 833 17264 1,812 5319 2,023 1,290 1,1BS E73 813
outbound 822 7,341 7208 6040 &, 7E5 B.245 TO0%G 5,287 5112 E.537
Laden ;
owtbound 28100 30T 20782 33234 40072 3593 I8T33 IgREZ  IX0B9 3539
Empty

Transshipment 1.334 250 7368 12323 18093 Z2079 15,313 12540 7735 158599
T-D'Iﬁl TEU= '.'I"'I.-"i-EE- TE,BDE 80,322 E'Dr'?ﬂlﬂ' 'IDE_I,EI'I_E 105,658 y _5'?.-1-3'1 5‘5'.-4-_24 B‘r,'l'lﬂ“_ 'ID'I.EI]-E_
%% Change -5.28% B2 S396% 1253% 7% -2.87% ~T.T2% 1.368% -15.40% 21.15%

# Devised
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TABLE 7: KEY PERFORMAMNCE IMDICATORS

zoz0f zomfzz 202122
Aymrages Target April May June= July Aug Sept Ock Kow D= Jan Feb kmr ‘vearhy
AnErages
Crame 27 e 2 2T % e 2E 24 n N % 26
Prioductivity
[Mowves per
Hour/crane)
Truck 3 3k 48 45 0 &£ &£ 45 40 4B 5% &6 L3 &2 45 50
Turnaround
Timie {mins)
Crwell Time B g Q 7 B g & 5 7 T 7 7 B g 6
FCL- Dry
{days)
Drwell Time 3 & & I 2 2 2 2 2 2 I I 2 2 .
FCL- reefer
{days]
Drwell Time: 5 3 5 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 3 3 3 3
LEL [days)
FIGURE &% GANTRY CRANME PRODUCTIVITY RATE
Productivity Rate — Gantry Crans
! |
XTZT 27 " 27
28 26 26
25
SPRIL MAAY JUKE JUALY SEPT OCT DEC FEB Man

@020 @ 20072



Personal Effects

Per=sonal effects deliveries totaled
27387 pieces and represented a
ZB% increase against the 27,065
pieces deliverad in Z020/71 [see
Figure 5]

Increased activity in this segment
reflected the return to travel and
shopping, increasing demand

far imports and improeed trade
florers as countries emerged from
pandemic lockdowr.

Cruise
Operations

Passenger arrivals

Barbados registerad 240,685
Cruise passenger arrivals from 324
cruise vassel calls this year (See
Figure 6). "With ships sailing at
3E% of total passenger capacity,
growth was shower in the 202122
winter season than anticipated

as the global fleet gradually
restarted.

Cin the positive side, the first
major harmeport operation from
a Royal Caribbean Cruise Line
vessal, Crardeur of the Seas,
began here in Movembsr 2021,
while 16 vessels made inaugural
calls to the Port of Bridgetown.

The autlook for Winter 202223
suggests a return to the levels
priar to the 20019-2020 cruise
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FIGURE 5: PERSONAL EFFECTS DELIVERED

ITETS 38006

aoTE D

RERRARERE
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8, T 58T
‘ |
arasn Ferh iy WAL

FIGURE 6:CRUISE PASSEMGER ARRIVALS

season, with some 390 wessel
calls scheduled and a projected
passenger capacity totaling
23,017,

Cruise Facilities

Following discussions betwesn
Barbadaos Part Inc. (BP} and
Bridgetown Cruise Terminals Inc.

L E1RETE ElaEsD
o ‘ ‘
ST oW o=l ]

Fi ]
i

(BLCTI), a decision was made by
the Board of Directors of BCTI
not to seek a further extension
ta the lease arrangement for
the management and operation
of the cruise terrminal, beyond
Cecembsar 31, 2021

With this decision, the
managerment and operation of
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the cruise terminal located at the Port of Bridgetowmn,
transitioned to BP| with effect from January 1, 2022
To ensure a seambess transfer, given that this took
place during the peak cruise season, management
of BCTland BRI worked closaly in coordinating
matters which needed to be addressed, including
angoing maintenance, staffing requirements, reniew
of existing contracts, tenant and leaze arrangements,
and management cversight.

Simce 1994, BCTI aperated the cruise terminal
under a lease agreed with BPI— formerly
Barbados Port Authority. The leass was renewvwed
on a number of occasions between January 1994
and Cecember 31, 2021




Investing in a
Sustainable Future

The BPI Master Plan 2020-2030 and the Business
Plan 2021-202& identify a number of infrastructural
projects which are impartant in diversifying Paort
revenue, impraving physical capacity, upgrading the
plant and attaining the full green Port status.

The Master Plan defines the major slements of the
Port's infrastructural build-out over the next 10 waars
with the following projects considered as pivotak

Aggregate Berth

The wiork to develop an aggregate berth continues
in collaboration with the C O Williams Construction
angineering team to mest the following neads:

Create land for the storage of imported
Fggregate and sand.

Estabdish a plant on the site for the production of
Fggregate in different sizes for both the local and
enport market.

Provide continual supply of sand to the local
market.

Following consultation with the planning agencies,
the enginesring designs have been further refined.
The next steps include:

Submission of Planning Application

Completion of the Environmental studies in
zocording to the approved termis of references for
assessing the ervironmental and social impacts
Completion of project Bill of Quantities and
Contract

Completion of construction designs.

Boat Haul Out Facility

Alsoin keeping with its Master Plan, the Board

af Directors agreed to allocate approximataly $.5
acres of land along the Mighty Grynner Highoeeay, for
the development of a boat repair facility through
concession, which will meet the needs of the local
boating sector and save vital revenue as boat
awrners will be able to sarvice their craft inm Barbadaos
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rathier than taking the craft off-island annually.
Additionally, the facility wilk

Service local as well as transient commercial

and recreational vessels for short and long-

term maintenance, repair and overhaul needs,
including emergancy haul-out and repair;
Prowide physical resources and services to
suppart resilient, independent and economically
productive commercial, recreational, research
and safety/sacurity marine- dependent activities,
and

Prowide an enabling environment for thea
development of training in critical maritime skills
through partnerships with and attachments

to, established training institutes and relevant
private sactor entities.

Faur firms weara short-listed during the tender
process and these were invited to submit
concession proposals by July 262h, 2021 Cnly
three firms responded with detailed proposals
and fallweirg the meeting of EPl's Tenders

and Procurement Maeting, the firm Caricbean
Cionstruction Limited (CCL) in partnership with
Clarke's Court Marina Group, was selected as the
preferred bidder, which will include:

Purchasing of a traveel lift

Construction of a slip-way and boat lift-out barth
Construction of workshop bays

Construction of a 247t wids lift out

Building an Administrative Cffice, Training Room
and Changing Facilities

Buildirng a mini-mart, chandlery and restaurant
Firger piers for handower flosting dock berths
DOrainage wark, fancing, security

Development of training prograrmmes in
association with local educational institutions.

EPI has also requested a set of concessions to
suppart the project as follows:

. Waner om Duties and Walus Added Tax [WAT] for
the project during construction (2022 - 2024)

. Waneer on Duties and VAT on boating repair
inputs (materials, equipment, supplies et).
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The Ministry of Finance, Economic Affairs and
Irvestment has been requested to approve the
ConceEssion regime ta support the construction and
aperation of the Bds$6 million investment in the
facility. BPI also drews reference to the fact that such
Concessions are typical in compseting regional bost
wards such as in Grenada.

Speightstown Jetty Repairs
The repair of the existing Speightstown Jetty was
significanthy adwvanced with upgrades as follows

Concrete structuras have been repaired

The decking has been replaced with a composite
grill systerm which will allow waee energy to
dissipate during high swell events

Handrails hawa baen installed

Solar lightswere installed to replace the wired
lights that were not functional.

The Jatty will be officially re-opened in April 2062,

Shallow Draught Marina

The Engineering Drawings for the project were
cormpleted in July 2021 and the Town Planning
Application was submitted in August 2021 Formal
approval was obtained in October 20210 Key
components of the project include:

Construction of additional berthing capacity
[additional 70 berths]

Construction of a commercial building
Storage facilities for boat owners/operators
Construction of a fish and farmer’s market
Construction of a minimart

Construction of a fuel dock

Construction of a new Roll On/Roll OFf dock for
farry and inter-island schooner services
Construction of wawe attenuation sbructures.

An important condition of the approeal is the
carmpletion of wawe collection and analysis studies
to develop the wawe climate of the area, =a that
aeffective wave attenuation structures can ba

designed and constructed. This would ensure

that boats would not hawve to leave the Shallow
Draught during heawvy swells. The wawve manitoring
component of this work was initiated in December
2021, The numerical/computer modelling studies
will be completed by June 2022

The contractar, Preconca, began construction wark
in February 2022, This project, estimated at US$16
million, is expected to continue for a period of 24
months.

Enhancements to lighthouses and
surrounding properties

Barbados is home to three historical lighthouse
properties managed by BPl Over the next five
years, the Paort will develop a concession madel
for each facility to expand both local culture and
historic social effarts and allow for the introduction
of mew tourism and park areas for residents and
vigitors alike. BP| also hopes to create commercial
opportunities for entrepreneurs through the
development of these national heritage assets.

The Tenders and Procurament Committes has
selected a preferred bidder and the Board has
ratified to lease and manage a concession at
the East Point Lighthouse. The tender has been
awarded to a community-based business group
called X-treme Ventures. Project development is
estimated at 12 months.

EPlis awaiting conclusion of the lease
arrangemeants from Ministry of Housing, Lands and
Fural Developrment for the lands at South Point
Lighthouss. This will permit the following:

1. Swbdivision of the lands into twa parcels

2. Establishment of the basis for a2 concession
agreement far the lighthouse portion

3. Offer for sale (st market value) the remaining
lands, the proceeds of which will be used far
major maintenance of all the Lighthouses.



Other Capital
Projects

Refurbishment of BPl Old Building

The plans ta refurbish the formear administration
building of BRI for occupation by the Customs

and Excise Department (CED) are progressing.
Ministry of Housing, Lands and Rural Development
is vaarking with CED to find a suitable location to
adequately house its staff during the refurbishmeant.
The spatial allocation has baen provided by CED and
the internal layout is nearing completion. Cnoe the
drawings have been completed and reviewed by
the approprate regulatory agendcies, the warks will
be tendered.

Signal Station refurbishment

BFI has initiated a rebuild of the Signal Station
located on the Breakwater in the Port The station,
wihich serves as the caontrol tower for wvessals, is an
eszsential ink betwean land and sea. Vessels arriving
o departirg the Port of Bridgetown are reguired

to contact the Station. The ald building, which had

fallen inta a state of disrepair, has been demalished
and a new structure is to be erected, outfitted

weith madiern traffic tracking systerns, improved
commumnication technologies and recarding
systems. it will be integrated with the national
wassel traffic systems, focused on security

BPI has awarded the tender for this project to
Empire Buildirg and Construction Inc. Work started
in Movember 2021 and the project is scheduled to
be completed by Septemiber 2022

Workers' Complex

Construction of a new recreation centre for workers
is on the cards. The project is slated to begin this
year, with a tentative apening in 2024 This new
facility will replace the existing &0-year-ald building
and will feature a mezzanine floor dedicated to
onsite training and development. The new facility
will be located at the site of the existing buildings in
the Workers' Complex, along the perimeter of the
Port's main entry. It is expected to boost emiplayee
morale and develop the skills of the direct labour
and clerical support workforce.
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Green Port Initiatives

IDE Invest approved a US$S0 million corporate
loam to BPI ta fund upcoming capital expenditures
far the modernization of Port operations. This
tran=action represants the first ID8B Irvest financing
im Barbadaos and supports the purchase and
imstallation of a Waste to Energy [WTE) system
cansisting of a wet-dry incineratar and a stearm
rankine cycle turbine; the purchase and installation
of up ta 1.5 Megawatts of additional rocftop
photovoltaic solar capacity: and warks associated
with certain repairs and upgrades to the Port’s
Barth #+.

The loan financing also makes provision to access a
second tranche of funds to support the construction
af thie proposed new Aggregate Barth.

Waste Management [with energy
generation component)

As BPI repositions to accept increased homeport
business, the Port must provide a broader range

aof acceptance for cruise waste in compliance

with MARPCL regulations as reflacted in the draft
Barbados Waste Reception regulations, which farm
a subsidiary of the new Merchant Shipping Act.

BRI was mativated to implement an Envircnmental
ard Social Management System [ESMS) which
identifizs and manages BPI's exposursa ta
erwviranmental and social risks and ensure
campliance with all legal and regulatory
requirements. BP| developed several policies in fine
with the ESMS and plans to ensure the project fits
within a sustainable futura:

1L ‘Water and Wastewater Management Plan

2. Waste Managerment Plan

% Emergency Besponse Plan (revised)

4 Air Quality and Emissions Management Plan

5. QOccupational Health and Safety Management
Plan

& Construction and Decommissianing
Management Plan

7. Labour Management Plan

B. Community ESHS Fisks and Impacts and
Security Management Plan

2. Stakehoider Engagement Plan.

The cost for the acguisition and installation of the
incinerator is estimated at US$20 million. This facility
will be erected with a capacity to accommeodate
Port waste as well as some inland municipal waste,
providing some ease to the pressure an thea kacal
landfill. The Board of Directors of BPI has supported
the option of cutsouwrcing procurerment to a third-
party agent. Crown Agents has been awarded the
contract for procurement and project management
services. The project duration is two years inchuding
design, decommissioning {old incinerator),
construction and cormmissioning of new incneratar
stakeholder angagement and training for lacal
project tearm.

Photo Voltaic Expansion

Plans are in train to install additicnal photo woltaic
(PW] systams using the racfs in the Part to move
toneard the goal of generating 100% of enengy
consumed through renewable sources. BP| has
already installed a S00KW PV systern which should
reduce electricity consurnption from the national
grid by at least 20%.

Hybrid Fleet

EPlis also adding five twin-Ift hybrid straddle
carriers to its cargo handling flzet. The equipment
is required to replace an ageing fleet and will
complement the Port's green initiatives aimed at
energy efficdency and zero emissions.



Trade Facilitation
Enhancement

Efforts are continuing to improee local logistics performance as
will as the exparience of doing business with the Port.

Sub-committee of the Social Partnership on
Performance and Efficiency at the Port of
Bridgetown

BP since 2012 has been callaborating even closer with its
stakeholders to improwve the local logistics sector performance as
well as the experience of doing business with the Port. A Sub-
committee of the Social Partnership was established to ecamine
Port Performance and Effickency and has been functioning
aocording to a prescribed workplan to effect change in key
areas through operational interventions, paolicy interventions,
information technology enhancements and private ssctor-led
initiatives.

The sub-committes is chaired by the Minister of Tourism and
International Transport, with representatives drasn from
Barbados Paort Inc., Custoims & Excise Department, Regulatary
and Law Erforcement Agencies based in the Port, the Congrass
of Trade Unions & 5taff Associations of Barbados [CTUSAB]),
Maticnal Union of Public Warkers [MUPW), Barbados Warkers'
Unicn (BWU), private sector agencies including Barbados
Manufacturers Association (BMA), Barbados Chamber of
Commernce & Industry (BCCH), the Barbados Private Sector Agency
[BP5&], aswell as service providers including the Barbados
Customs Brokers & Clerks Association, Shipping Asscciation of
Barbados and Transport Imtermediaries of Barbados.

Following the identification of sorme twenty-six specific problems
within the logistics service chain, the sub-committes developed
the workplan in the context of local operational intersentions,
policy interventions, information technology enhancements and
private sector-led initiatives. Most of the year in review was spent
implementing aspects of the workplan. The main achieverments
this year include the following:

Trade Facilitation Committee
Arisk management session was cormsened in Seprermber
2020, with the support of the CARICOM Secretariat, Cther
Government Agencies [O0As) were reguired to submit their
respective risk management processes for analysis by the
Secretariat's consultant
Aoworkshop was conducted in December 2021 by the
CARICOM Secretariat whers regional participants heard
presentations on trade facilitation initiatives in their respective
Jurisdictions.
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Manning levels and productivity
enhancement within BPI
Mestings were held with the private sector
group to disouss Port efficiency regarding labour
relations; key persons were identified to gather
all the necess=ary information to lend value ta the
negatiation process with the workers" unions.

Central Container Examination

Facility (CCEF)

- The plans for the project were submitted to the
Teneen and Country Development Planning Office
[TEPDC for appronal.

BRI contracted a consultant to reviesw the
business case for the projact.

ISO 9001:2015

BFI this year obtained the Intermational
Crganisation for Standardisation (I50] 90012015
certification, making the Port of Bridgetown the
first seaport in English-speaking Caribbean to be
accredited this Quality Managemenit Systerm [QJBMS5)
designation.

BF| was certified on February 8, 2022 following a
successful audit of the Company’s managemenit
system by Lloyds Register of Cuslity Assurance
(LRQA).

The scope of this approval is applicable to

the prowision of marine services and facilities
management for cargo and cruise operations at the
Port of Bridgetown and reflects BPI's commitrment
to meeting and exceeding the needs of custarmers
and stakehaolders while elevating its service
ecellance levels.

BPI's jourmey to 150 20012005 certification began

im August 2019, as part of effarts to implement a
Cuality Management System [3M5) framework to
standardize business processes, enhance the quality
of products and services, improee operational

Off-port inspections and

Container returns
An appointment system for inspection of FCL
cargo will be established where the following will
be implemented:

o An assessment of technical timas of containars
being inspectad affsite.

o A programme will be developed to facilitate
better coordination of offsite inspections.

Service Level Agreements

To further advance the work of the Sub-Committes,
BEPlis seeking to develop and formalizae Service
Level Agreements [SLAS) with Government agencies
operating within the Port of Bridgetown. The SLAs
will go a long way in addressing exigent challenges
and removing obstacles to the harmonisation of
Port operations.

effectiveness, boost productivity, enhance customer
satisfaction and better manage risks in the
organization.

Becoming 150 900122005 certified enhances the
Port’s competitiveness as a full service, international
trade seapart, and better positions it to meet the
ever-changing demands and expectations within
the maritime transport sectar. The intention is to
keep improving and updating the QM5 so that it
remains effective and adds value to the business.

The |50 S001 M5 is a framework to standard ize
business processes, enhance the quality of products
and senvices, improve aperational effectiveness,
boost productivity, enhance customer satisfaction,
and better manage risks in the organization.

Ohrganisations accredited to 150 900012015
demonstrate the ability to consistenthy provide
products and services that meet custormer and
regulatory requirements and enhance customer
satisfaction.



Customer Complaints
Management

Complementary to the QM5 BRlimplermented 2
rmiechanism for customer complaints via complaintsg
barbadosport com with the goal to acknowdadogs
custormer complaints within 48 hours of receipt. Thea
complaints receved were primarily focused onissues
related to mon-commerdial cargo Where applicable
corrective actions were taken to address the issuss with
the aim to present reocoumences

Strategic Partnerships

In tandem with Gowernment's efforts foousing on
deapeaning and strengthening its existing bilzteral
relationships, BPI has been engaging potential
strategic partners across the Caribbean, Marth
America, and Europe. BP1 has alsa been sesking to
dewelop new non-traditional partners in Africa, Asia,
Eastern Europe, the Gulf States and Latin America

The Sovernment of Barbados has signed a Sister
Port Agreement with the Part of Tema, Chana

ard is concluding arother with Port of Mombasa,
Kerya. It is hoped that these enhanced relations
will lead to the development of new trade lanes,
with the Port of Bridgetown positioned as a hulb
far transshiprment throwgh the Caribbean. Similarky,
im leremraging new and existing bilateral relations,

it is anticipated that this will enhance commercial
appartunities through increased trade.

BF as part of the effort. is also seeking to finalise 2
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU} with Abu

——
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Ohabi Ports in the United Arab Emirates and has
submitted a draft docurment for consideration by
Covernment.

The agreement with the portsis intended to:

Faster technalogical developrnents through
information and expertise sharing.

Share information on best practices and
developments in the global maritime industny,
including global transshipment and shipping
logistics.

Collaborate an matters relating to ermvircnmental
protection and green port initiatives.

Exchamge information on business opportunities
to raise awareness amaong the private sectorsin
both regions to increase the lewel of trade.
Crevelop opportunities for personnel training and
apprenticeships.

Promote the services of the ports as the afficient
and sustainable pathway for trade into their
respective regions.

Fadilitate the achievernent of the abjective of the
respective ports sarving as sister ports to the Part
of Bridgetown to support increased trade and
transshipmeni.

EPI has also inttiated discussions on the explaration
of mew transhipment business with Cuyana and
Swuriname and is cooperating with the Spacial
Enviony ta Cuyana and Suriname inthe Prime
Minister's Office to deepan and strengthen existing
relaticnships between the countries.

In suppaort of thasa initiatives, BRIl continued to
engage resources to explore business ocpportunities
at several levels while continuing dialogue with
partner agencies like Expaort Barbados [BIDC).




Digital Innovation

The Port i= embracing energy transition, digitisation
ard innovation in a bid to be more efficient,

reliable and competitive. Digitisation initiatives

are concerned with either better control and
management of the Port and Port infrastructure or
improved efficiency of logistics processas.

Digitalisation

The digital strategy targets continued enhancement
of BPI's competitive edge by capitalizing on new
appartunities for greater value creation in doing
businass, increasing operational efficiencies and
transparency, reducing cost, reducing greenhouss
emissions and improving services for sustained
growvthe The new technologies will alsa provide
imsighits into areas of optimization, streamilina

the Part and logistics supphy chain and enhance
productivity. It is anticipated that the utilisation of
these innovative solutions will by extension improwe
the ease of doing business.

Port Community System

Creveloprment of a Port Community System

(PCE] i= the major digital project cwrrenthy under
development at BPI. This €540,258 project, partially
financed by the Eurcpean Union and supervised

by the Cariblbean Developrment Bank, was formally
initiated on March 3, 2021 The praject, which is
scheduled to be completed in 2023, supports the
creation of an online system accessible to Customs
and Bxcize and other Sovernment Agencies, agents
and shipping lines, those imohed in logistics

and freight forearding, terminal and warehouse
operations and the processing and clearance of
cargo. It will enable greater efficiency, a reduction in
operating costs and a mare sustainable approach ta
management of Port operations. it will also support
improved documentary conformity through
simplification, standardisation, rationalisation
(reducing paperwork] and harmonisstion of
clearance processes and procedures, asweell as
information sharing between trade actors through
a single platform. The PCS will aid Barbadaos in
fulfilling international obligations under the World
Trade Crrganisation Trade Facilitation Agreement
(TFA) and the International Maritime Organisation
(12 Comvention on Facilitation of Imternational
Maritirme Traffic (FAL) (19&7].



The folloeding project activities were completed
during the pericd under reviesss:

Recruitment of twwo additional software
programmers in accordance with the PCS grant
agresment.

Submission of a Software Development Plan to
Caribb=an Devalopment Bank [CDE).
Cybersecurity Assessment workshops were
facilitated by the cybersecurity specialist on the
Organization of American States consultancy
team as part of the Situational Analysis
Assessment conducted.

Tweo deliverables wera received ta date from the
QAL BExpert Tearn and were reviewed by the PCS
Steering Committes: The Inception Report and the
draft Situational Analysis Report.

BRI is working with the 0AS team to finalise the
roadmap for the development of the softwarae
modules and coordinating the continuation of
stabeholder sensitization webinars. Plans are also
being finalized for a study tour to Eurapean Ports
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aimed at sensitising private and public sectorsin
Barbados to international bast practices in PCS

deployrment.

IMO Maritimme Single Window

Phase |l of the Maritime Single Window was
completed and deployed. By using this platform, the
format for the scheduling, cancellation and reporting
of inrcoming wiyages was standardized. Efficiency
was greatly improrsed as voyage information is
automatically and instantanecusly disseminated to
all regulatary agencies. This relieves vessel agents

of the task of sending copies of the sarme email or
paper-based message to each agancy

Discussions were held with executive personmel
from CARICOM Implementation Agency for Crime
and Security [IMPACS) to commence the final
phase. Phase lll zsims to streamline and standardize
reporting obligations by linking all information flowes
required by each regulatory agency invohed in the
clearance process. Legislation is under revision
regarding the aspect of vessels' chearance.
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Enhanced Border Security

BPI is compliant with the prowisions of the International Ship and
Port Facility Security (I5P5) Code. During the period under review,
cansiderable progress was achieved through the implementation
of processes and projects aimed at strengthening IEPS compliznce,
whilst reducing business risks.

National Maritirme Security Strategy

The Mational Maritirme Security Strateqy Warking Group [MEMSEWE]
project in which BPl served as a committes member, was completed

im Septermber 2021, Dwring the project. a Port risk assessmient was
canducted utilizing methodologies proposed by the 045 Consultant
Tearmn. The United Kingdom's Department for Transport [DFT) Risk Audit
Matro miode] was used as well as several other enterprise-based risk
assessments. The assessment socught to provide a clear roadmap towarnds
micdification and upgrade of BPI's Port Facility Security Plan and by
exttersion, its Emergency Response Planning capacity.

Access Control

Upgraded online access control management systems were
implemented Port-wide to drive and coordinate uninterrupted flows
of carga, passengers and visitors. The access appaintrment systerm
miatured in its evolution and remained optimal during the period
under reniew.

An amdmoid app was developed specifically for cruise and tour
aperators and is awaiting deployment. The app consists of a parking
module that will allows the touwr operators to book their request for
entry to the Port and select a parking location.

It can be used to upload the list of passengers booked for the tour,
capturing the places the tour will be wisiting along with the vessel
information and stateroom for each passenger. This information is
used for contact tracing if required.

The app provides tour operators with a profile through which they can
update their status as well as maka changes ta any pending reqguests.
Eliminating the need for towr operators ta enter static infarmation
repeatedly, the operator need only input the dates and times for their
tours. The facility gives the operators the status of past and current
applications.

Similarly, an app was developed for tax operators to manage their
requests. The app will issue the aoperators with a QR code which is

to be scanned at the Taxi's Entrance at the Part’s Main Gate. BPI's
Security Officers can use the application ta verify that the Taxzi operator
iz a walid operator. This too is awaitting deployrmearnt.



Developing
an Engaged &
Empowered
Workforce

Renegotiation of Written

Collective Agreement

Barbados Port Inc, the Shipping Association

of Barbados [Employers) and the Barbados
Warkers' Union (Employees’ Representative)] are
the signatories to a written Collective Agreement
which gosverns the working arrangements at the
Port of Bridgetown. The agreement was signed on
Septermber 12, 2004,

BPl and the Barbados Worlkers” Union (BWLU hawve
been maintaining good and healthy industrial
relations which facilitated a harmoniows labaour-
management climate. it was also conduche to
management convening regular meetings with the
union delegates in the various areas of operation

to discuss the working conditions and other work-
related matters and to implement processes to
enhance the working environmenit
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Since signature of the Agreement, the natuwre of
operations at BP| has changed significanthy and

the way that similar port fadilities regionally and
internationally function hawe alsochangedina
manner that directly and indirecthy impacts our local
operations. BPI has therefore submitted propasals
for changes to the collective agreement.

Renegatiation of the Collactive Agreement to
update labor practices should significanthy assist in
improving aparational efficiencies. Recognising this,
EPI has sought to establish a tripartite approsch to
inform the bargaining pracess, inviting input from
the private sector.

Training

BPI is committed to imwesting in the Port’s
employess and equipping them with the tools
reeded to meset evalving demands.

In spite of the challenges of COVID-19, a number
of training programmes were rolled out aimed

gt strengthening core compstencies within

the Campamy This included training in 1550
Q0012005 Root Cause Analysis; Custormer Servics:
CCTV Cperation; Dangerous Goods, Hazardous
Swbstances & Emergency Response Management
and Building Part Resilience Against Pandemics
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Safety, Health & Environment

INCIDENT REPCORTING

Indicator Definition 20212022
Recordable Incidents Arry workplace-caused injury or illness that comes under A
ane or more of the following categaories:
Dieath, days away from work, restricked work or transfer
to ancther job, medical treatrment beyand first aid, or
loss of consciousness.
Lost tirme Cases Total number of employees with a work-related injury 9
ar illiness that results in ane or more calendar days away
from waork based upon a medical determination.
Lost Work Days Total days lost due to a waork-related injury or illnass. 235
Dangerous Ocourrences  Circumistances where the incident had the potential to 2
cause injury or death,.
Facing the COVID-19 coordinated vaccination sessions . Employee Engagement
Challenge for its employees. and Enfranchisement
The wellness programme The Company's first Employes

cantinued, sensitising
amployeaes on the prewvantion
and management of non-
communicable dissases
particularly against the
background of communicable
dizaases like COVID-14.

The Medical facility prormoted
Employes COVID-19 vaccination
messaging in an effort to

boast the organisation's fight
Zgainst COVID-19. BRI haosted
information sessions on the
Oeford AstraZenscavaccins and

Adapted wark arrangements
were maintained to ansure the
continued delivery of essential
cargo. Some of the measures
implemented included:

- Work-from-homea
arrangements where feasible

- Rotational shift arrangements
for administrative staff

- Operational staff release an
completion of tasks

- ldentification, relesss and paid
leave for high-risk employses

- Limitaticns on the numbser of
custamers in Port areas.

Appreciation Day was held on
May 28th, 2022 while long service
awards were presented to those
employesas who reached the
annivarsary milestones of ten,
fifteen, twenty, teenty-five, thirty,
thirty-five and forty years of
sarvice.

EPl prepared for issue a
prospectus which alkowed for
investment in the $100 million
Part Bord by all interested
Barbados Port Inc. employees
and Barbadians in denominations
of $1,000 or more, by purchasing
on the open market.



Our Corporate Social Responsibility

As part of its corporate social responsibility, BP| has
cormmitted to two major construction projects.

Port Fire station

A building within the Part, which formerly housed
the mechanical workshop, and located close to the
main entrance, will be redesigned and configurad
to create the new fire station. The station will be
autfitted with two fire tenders and will provide
amergency service to the capital city, Bridgetown.

BRI has awarded the tender for this project to XM
Services. The project, which was started in October
2020 is scheduled to be completed by July 20322,

Millie Ifill Fish Market

EPIis working to refurbish and expand its well-
known fishing complexes including upgrades

to establish a designated area for boats, parking
facilities, proper bathroom fadilities, and public
spaces. The design work for this project is ongoing.

The Port cormpletad the refurbishment of the Pila
Bay Fishing Fadility in 2021 with the official opening
by Prime Minister Mia Maottheny on May 21,
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Looking To The
Future

We hawve been fundamentally improving and
reinvigorating our business to respond to shifting
customer expectations and a continuwoushy
chamging environment.

Thiswear's results are an encouraging sign that we
are making significant progress but a reminder
also, that we hawve anly just begun our jourmey to
tormormoe.

Wi are on course to becoming a knowledge-based,
skill-imtensne Port, powered by ideas, innowvation
and technology. Cur aim is to become one of the
wiorkd's highest rated green maritime ports

hMuch of our focus in the coming year will therefore
be an the long-term development of the Port. Plans
hawe been well laid out to realise the ambitious
goals set for 2030, We remain fooused on our
Masterplan and guided by our Business Plan. It

is recagnized howeewer that if the infrastructure

BRI is imvesting in is to provide the full capacity

it is designed to deliver, we will have to efiminats

supply chain inefficiencies. That means investing
more in digitalization, new business models, mew
appraaches to work and the delivery of owr services.

At the same time, we are keeping a keen eye

on international developments such as the war

in Ukraine, which have the potential to result in
significant disruption to workdwide supply chains.

Efforts must therefore be made to ensura that
wea retain some fleibility within the delivery of
the capital imestment programme envisaged
urder Masterplan 2050 to atvance or delay
implementation of projects in response to wider
economic developments.

Barbados Port Inc. is committed to sucoessfully
managing its exposure to risk and to minirmising
the impact of such on the achievement of the
Company’s business objectives.

:‘;::uvvﬂ .ﬁu.\# A

David Jean-Marie
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
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Major Milestones
1961-2021

For more than 300 years, Bridgetown was a port of call for ships ssiling the Eastern Caribbean. Until the
deep water Harbour was built, the larger ships anchared in Carlisle Bay. The cargo and passengers weres
then transparted in smaller boats called lightars, to the Wharf at the Careenage

Wark on the construction of the Deep Water Harbour commenced in June 1957 and ended with the official
opening on May & 13&1 This is our journey through the B0 years since then.

Pelican Island was [cined to the
mainland of Barbados.
Comstruction of the Deep Water
Harbour commencad in June 1957,
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MY Diplomat was the first ship to enter the mew
Bridgetoven Harbour.

Port Contractors Limited
was established o
administer the Port

Major upgrades undertaken
b. Added 9.3 hactares for bulk
handling facility.

May &, 1961 the Bridgetown
Port was officially opened by
Sar Grantley Adams

Major upgrades undertaken
& Enhanced cross berth
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The Barbados Port Authority was

established. Inter-island cargo and passenger operations

weere transferred to the Shallow Draught
Facility from the Caresnage.

|
1979 1983

The Adrministration Building was
officially cpensad by Prime Minister ]
MG M Adams.

Completion of Engineering
Workshop and enclosed
garage for port equipment.
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The first Cantry Crane went
into operation.

Development
of Boat Facility.

1990 1992

Winnes, Port OFf The
‘fear &ward

Cruize and cargo
infrastructure upgrades
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Winner,
Port Of The
‘fear Sward

1994

Shed 1was transformed into a
micdern duty fres shopping and cruise
passenger terminal

Port Of The “Year Sward 1996

1996

‘Winner, Port Of The
Year Awvard

1997

Winner,

Award for
Cependakbility &
Port of the Year
Award




ANMNUAL REPORT 2021722 57

The Port welcomed the &dventure of the Seas,
then the world's largest cruise ship.
Cieployment,
Barbados Il Tug
- enables port to
maneuver larger
vessels,

2002

Reclamation of 9 aones of land
for newer mega cruise ships.

Completed the Careenage
Aehabilitation Project.

Winner, Port Of The
“fear Award.
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Crpened new medical
facility onsits.

The queen Mary I, then
the largest cruizs liner
visited Bridgetown on its
maiden voyage

o = Winmer, Port OF The Year &ward.
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Chamberlzin bridge was
rebuilt as a modern lift bridge.

Frst integration of Port and
Customs electromic systems

Winner, Port Of The Year &ward.
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Barbados Port Imc.
celebrated s S0th
Anmivarsany.

Winmer, Nowaport
Cup for "Most
Improwed Port
Performance,

& Port Safety &
Security Awvard.

S 2009 2010

Winner, Novaport Cup

for "Most Improved Winmer, Novaport
Port Performance. Cup for "Most
Improwed Port

Performance




Winmer, Top
Internaticnal
Training Award

Winmer, Port
Growth and
Cevelopment
Hward

2014

Completion of
yacht jetty.

Mew cargo handlimg
equipment deployed,
including the second
gantry crane,
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Completed and
renpaned Wickham
Lewis Boardwalk.

Le-year old Main Date was
demiolished and a new mult-lans
entrance facility was constructed.
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Completed the
restoration of
the Zouth Point
Lighithouse

Winmer, Launch of BRI Mentorship
Muslti- Programume.

Purpose

Port of the

“ear Award

Migration to the new cloud-
based, DCTOPL

Deployment of Zrd Gantry
Crane.

Implemented new,
electronic Human
Resource Information
i System.

L e

Mew mission and

A new electric
vizion to be the most tram service
inmovative, green IMOVES CIUISE
maritims hukb. passengers from

L

qQuiay to terminal




BFI joined the electric
wehicls [EV] revolution,
using one of its on-the-moad
MESSSNQEr Servines,

Harbados seta
rey record for
CrUise passenger
arrivals in a simgle
wear. 853,200
[ESSEMJErs.

Oifficial opening of the new
Administration Building, Cube Blus.

Arrival of the Symphory of
the Seas, the world's largest
cruise ship.

BPl installed new photoealtaic
1FW] systems, reducing
electricity conswmption from
the mational grid.

Winner,
Movaport

Cup for Most
Improved Port
Performance.
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Provided =afe
hartour for
cruise vessels
during the
COVID-19
global
pandemic.

B invests in new, diessl-electric
hwylorid Stracidle Carniers, the first
eyver in the Carbbean.

The Port of
Bridgetown — :
e | BARBADOS
O PORT INC
Amnivarsan @ VREiaT

Launched
Port
Community
System
project







Milestones
in 2021/22




ISO DD01:2005 certification

BPl on February 8, 2022 obtainad the International
Crganisation for Standardisation {150) 90012015
certification, making the Port of Bridgetown the
first s=apart in English-speaking Caribbean to

be accredited this Juality Management Syskem
(5] designation.
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Unveiling The HNew Corporate ldentity

Barbados Port Inc, completed a corporate
rebrand, urneeiling the new corporate identity
on May B, 2021

&0th Anniversary Celebrations

BPl markad the B0th anniversary of the official
opening of the Port of Bridgetown on May &, 2021

Employee Appreciation Day

BPI hosted its first Employee Appreciation Day
on May 28, 2021,



Celebrating Long-serving Employees

BPFI celebratad 270 of its long-s2rving employses
im a presentation of cormmemorative plagues. The
Port dizscerns itseff among those organizations
retaining a significantly high numbser of long-
serving staff, with two sarving 40 years, elewen
having served 35-39 years; sevanteen who served

" GOVERNANCE
POLICY

Corporate Governance

EF formalised its corporate governance
structure to improee imvestor confidence, reduce
the cost of capital and increase transparency.

A numiber of policies were developed and
approved by the Board of Directors in suppart

of this thrust: Whistleblower Policy. Custormer
Sarvice Charter, Environmental, Social,

20-34 years and one hundred and twenity-fowr
having served 25-29 years. Eighty-eight mara hawve
served betweaen 20 and 24 years; whila twenty
marked 15 years or service and seven reached 10
years of servica in 2021

\

-

Health and Safety [ESHE) Policy Staternent and
Environmental and Social Management System
(ESMS) ard Quality Management System Policy
Staterment Draft copies of the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics, Corporate Governance Policy
and Imternal Auwdit Charter were developed and
submitted to the Board for approval.
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The Pile Bay Fishing Facility Refurbishment Transitioning to BPI

Refurbishment of the Pile Bay Fishing Facility was Following a decision by the Board of Directors of
completed, with the official opening by Prime Bridgetown Cruise Terminals Inc. (BCTI), not to
Minister Mia Armmor Mottley on bMay 21, 2021 seek a further extension to the lease arrangement

beyond December 31, 2021, the management and
operation of the cruise terminal, located at the Port
of Bridgetowmn, transitioned to BP1 with effact from
January 1, 2022,
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholder of Barbados Port Inc.

Owur opinion

Im cwr cpinion, the consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,

the consclidated financial position of Barbados Port Inc. (the Company) and its subsidiarny
{together "the Group’) as at March 31, 2022, and their consolidated financial performance and
their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intermational Financial
Reporting Standands.

What we have audited
The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise:

=  the conscldated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2022;

=  the consclidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

= the consclidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

=  the consclidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

=  the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1548s). Cur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilifies for
the audif of the consolidafed financial siafements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Intermational Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountanis (including Infernaticnal Independence Standands) issued by the
Internaticnal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled cur other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Report (but does not include the consclidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon), which is expecied to be made available fo us after this auditor's repaort date.

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion therson.

PricewaterhonseCopopers SEL, The Financial Services Centre, Bishop's Coart Hill, PLO. Box 111, 5t. Mhichael
EBi4004, Barbados, West Indies
T: (246) 626 G700, T (246) 436 1275, www, pwe.com, b
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In connection with cur audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to

read the other information identified abowe when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other informaftion is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtaimed in the audif, or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstaternent therein,
we are reguired to communicate the matier to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the

consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
controd as management determines is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermon

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, managemeant is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going
concern and wsing the going concern basis of accounting unless managemeant either intends to
liguidate the Group or to cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Owur objectives are to cbiain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and

to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable asswrance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with 154s will always
detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated fimancial
statements, whether due fo frawd or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and ocbtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for cur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher thamn for one resulting from emor, as fraud may imvolve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

=  Dbtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the crcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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=  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the auwdit evidence ocbizined, whether a materal uncerfainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ahility to confinue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
wie are required fo draw attenfion in our audifor's report fo the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo modify our
ocpinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease fo
confinue as a going concern.

=  Ewvaluate the ocverall presentation, structure and content of the consalidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consclidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinicn on the consclidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. incleding any significant
deficiencies in infernal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholder, as a body corporate, in accordance
with Section 147 of the Companies Act of Barbados. Owur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company’s sharehclder those matters we are required o state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law, we
do nof acespt or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
shareholder as a body corporate, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opiniocn we have
formed.

Bridgetown, Barbados
July 20, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at March 31, 2022
[zepreszed in Barbados dollars)

Current assets

Cash at bank [note 4)

Accounts recenrabls (note B)

Cther receivables and prepaid expenses [note G

Irventories [note 7]

Mon-current assets

Financial investments [note B

Irvestment in assoaciated company (note 10}
Property, plant and equipment {note 11)
Right of use assets (note 12)

Capital works in progress (note 135]

Pension plan asset (note 14

Ciefarred tax asset [(nate 15]

Total assets

17,671,942
T, 260,364

6,/62 4,666

AT181, 737

5,853,920
1,257

4,302,248
1,116,148

315,111,457

352,293,25%

2021

14003, 502
2IET4E7
2,263,087
&,371,856

24 BIE62T

3,834,417
437631

IR 344033
3866925
219889
6,022 5545
1252047

310716815

335,543 442
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position _conro

As at March 31, 2022
[zepressad in Barbados dollars)

Liakilities and equity

Current liabilities

Arcounts pavable and accrued liabilities [note 18)
Corporation tax payakble

Current portion of loans (note 17)

Current portion of lease liabilities [note 12)

Mon-current liabilities

Long-term loans (nate 17)

Lease liabilities (note T2}

Post-retirement medical benefits obligation [note 14)

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital (note 18]

Capital contributions (mote T3]
Port fund

Fair value reserve

Capital replacement fund
Retained sarnings

Capital and reserves attributable to the cwner of Barbados Port Inc.

Mon-cantrolling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Approved by the Board of Directors on Julby 14, 2022
—a—

Chairman

R

2022 2021

£ %

9,249,910 4,783 585
535, 3F7T 1.B33
B,529,091 2
5,528,898 £, 05D 414
23, FTR 236 10,844 833
91,570,909 100 00,000
13,805,824 18 344722
5,133,045 G, 400746
0,505,778 124754 468
133,783,005 135,555 30
 [i 1] 100
78,683,280 TEERE2B0
10000 130,000
7,361 ZT361

- 21250
13,373,739 3226740
10,190, 550 192058731
8,219,750 TAEBL 410
218,510,290 190 05 £ 140
352,793,294 I35 43 440
é\u..*.-"-\_ ¥l Director
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended March 31, 2022
[zzpressad in Barbados dollars)

Revenue
Cargo handling
Excess storage
Marine revanue
Passenger lewvy
Rent

Other {note 20)

Other operating income
Gain on disposal of plant and eguipment
Miscellaneouws

Interest inCcome

Total operating income

Expenses
Administration
Staff costs [note 23
Oithier expensas

Profit from operations

2022 2021

£ £
75,873,085 52 335,022
2,203,777 1,655,194
B,815,387 TEREZ 434
2,965,775 s
1,350,101 14120400
10,255,415 7681435
102,070, 55 S30,6892978
- B.5n

70,596 508 470
35,2XT FA043
105,833 E3EEBE3
102075,977 B1.306,859
14,103,523 15,745 207
37,283,818 IEFETO09
24 66T0FT 23 086 5B0
76,054,378 T2.573.086
26,121,599 BIE3ITTE




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income _conto

For the year ended March 31, 2022
[zzpressed in Barbados dollars)

Profit from operations
Finamce costs

Income before taxation and share of net income/f{loss) of
associated company
Share of net incomea/f{loss) of associated company [note 10)

Incomef{loss) before taxation
Taxation {mote 23)

Met income/[loss) for the year

Met income/[loss) is attributable to:

Owwrner of Barbados Port Inc.
Mon-controlling interest

other comprehensive [loss)/income:

lterns that will not be reclassified to income:
Remeasurament of retirement benefit obligations (note 14]
Defarred tax chargesicredit] on remeasurerment of retirement
benefit obligations [note 15)

other comprehensive [loss)fincome for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable tio:
Owrier of Barbados Port Inc.

Mon-controlling interest

ANMNUAL REPORT 2021722 &1

15,388,240

(1&3,730)

(1.598)

[702.361)

18,516,145

18,153,055

18,516,153

8733773
{8.550.846)

202,927
(307.586)
(10:4,6509)

(1705152}
_[Le03.8m)
(1.771,146)

(88,665}

[LB09.ET)

460,899

142,531
4312430
2.502,619

2501284
98.665)

2,502 519
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31, 2022
[zepreszad in Barbados dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Incomef{ioss) before taxation
Adjustrments for:

Depreciation
Jain an dispasal of property, plant and equipment
Imterest and dividend income
Finance costs
Share of net (incomel/loss of associated company
Pension and other post-retirement benefits
Write back of capital replacernant fund
Write off of acquisition-related costs
Capital work in progress expensed
Amartisation of right of use assets

Oparating profit before working capital changes
Diecreassa in restricted cash (owrrent)
[Increasel/decrease in accounts receivable

[Increasel/decrease in other receivables and prepaid expenses

Increase in inventories

Increasefidecrease] in accounts payakbde and accrued liabilities

Cash generated by operations

Finamnce costs paid

Taxes paid

Pension and other post-retirement benefits’ contributions

Het cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from imeesting activities

Purchase of property, plant and eguipment

Expenditure on capital works in prograess

Procesads from disposal of property, plant and equiprment
Imtarest and dividend income recaived

Payrment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acguired

Het cash used in investing activities

Carried forward

12,388,250
17,279, 62%
(35,237)
6,593, M7
(663,666)
1,264,305
(21,.250)
201,781

445, 330,373

(8,072,877)
(360,843)
(253.010)

40,169,967
(6.593,M7)
(1.833)

(L112175)

32,462,842
[5.338,175)
7.477.737)

9,734

(22.,8086,238)

(10:4.659)

17,013,056
{8,511}
[29.943)
8,530,846
307,586
227710
480,000

402,880

2E,518,345
5,400,002
3,825, 901
2€,352.973
(147.677)
(2,048 536

55,190.995
{3.530,846)

[13,732.BE0]
32036272
[5.443,92]

(17,993,085

BT
20,030
{7499 565)

[30.897.4001)

2,033,827




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows _conro

For the year ended March 31, 2022
[zzpressad in Barbados dollars)

Carried forward

Cash flows from fimnancing activities

Loan recensad

Met increase in capital replacerment fund

Repayment of finance leasses

Met cash [used in)/generated from financing activities

MHet increase in cash and cash eguivalents

Cash amd cash equivalents - beginning of year

Casch and cash equivalents - end of year [mote 4]

ANMNUAL REPORT 2021722 &3

‘3,656,604

[5,288,164)

THET, S4%2

203887

18,923,000
:15.?&1.51;]
3221376
5260247

8,743,255

T, 0005, 502
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2022
[zepressad in Barbados dollars)

1. Establishment of Barbados Port Inc.
The Barbados Port Authority was established by the Barbedos Port Authaority Act, Cap 2858, as
amended by the Barbados Port Authaority (Amendment) Acts 1978-33 and 1287-37. The Act as initially
amended was praclaimed on January 1, 1979,

Upon the commencement of the Act on January 1, 1872 all property (other than land and buildings)
belonging to the State and used exclusively for the purpose of the Port Departrment and Port
Contractors (Barbados) Limited was transferred to and wested in tha Authority, and all liabilities of the
Port Departrment and Port Contractors [Barbados) Limited axisting at the commencemeant of the Act
wiere assurmed and assured by the Authority.

The Act was repealed on December 19, 20032 and a new Act, the Barbados Port Inc. [Transfer of
Management and Vesting of Assets] Act 2003, was proclaimed.

The Act was passed:

3] To provide for the Port of Bridgetown to be managed by Barbadaos Part Inc., a Company
incorporated under the Companies Act, for the purpass of enabling the Port to operate asa
cormmercial entity,

b Totransfer the assets and liabilities of the Covernmeant of Barbados in relation to the operation of
thie Part of Bridgetown to Barbadas Port Inc.

c] Torepeal the Barbados Port Autharity Act

The main provisions of the Act are disclosed below.

Commencement of Dperotions

The Port shall b= operated by the Company from the date of the commencemeant of this Act.
Transfer of Assets, Liobilities, Rights, etc.

For the purposes of the Act:

L The lands of the Port shall be leased to the Company by the Crown for such period as the Crosen
determines.

2 Alk

a] Assetsin relation to the operation of the Port that were wested in the Authority immedistely before
the commencement of this Act;

bl Liabilities that were incurred by ar on behalf of the Authority in relation to the operation of the Port
ard subsisting immediately befare the commencement of this Act; and

<] Rights ta set, collect and retain port duss and charges for the provision and use of port facilities
and services are transfierred and vested in the Company, and by virtue of this Act and without
further assurance, transfer or other formality are to be held with effect from the date of the
cormmencerment of this Act, by the Company to the same extent and interest and in the =ame
manner as they were vested in or held by the Authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2oz
[zepressad in Barbados dollars)

1. Establishment of the Barbados Port Inc. ..continued
Traonsfer of Assets, Liohilities, Rights, etc. ..cantinued

All contracts entered into by or on behalf of the Authority in relation to the operation of the Port before
the commencement of this Act, shall be deemed to hawe bean entered into by or on behalf of the
Company from the date of the commencemeant of this Act.

Im respiect of the operation of the Port:
a)  All rights, privileges, duties or obligations conferred or imposed upon the Authority; and

B Al powers and remedies as to the taking and resisting of legal proceedings for the ascertaining,
perfecting or enforcing of all rights or liabilities vested in the Authority immediately before the
carmmencement of this Act, shall b2 deemed to be confierred ar imposed an the Company.

Financial statement presentaticn

Consistant with the provisions of Section 355.7 of the Companies Act Cap 308, which addressed the
preservation of a Statutory Compamy incorporated under the Companies Act, and in accordance

with thea substance of the corporatisation plan of the Port, these financial staternants were presanted
from the year to December 1, 2003 as if the Barbados Part Authority had been "continwed” as
Barbados Port Inc.

Group structure

Barbados Port Inc. acguired a contralling interest in e Port Imvestments Inc. during 2021, The
Company and its subsidiary are referred to as the Group.

The Group's principal place of business is at "Cube Blueg®, Prescod Boulevard, Bridgetosn,
5t. Michael, Barbados.

2. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting poficies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies hawve been consistently applied to all pericds presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Basisof preparation
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reparting Standards {IFRS) under the historical cost comnvention, as madified by the
revaluation of financial imvestments at fair value through other comprehensive income [FW2CT)

as disclosed in mote 2(h).

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with IFRS reguires the usa of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also reguires management ta exercisa its judgement in the

pracess of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas invalving a higher degres of
Jjudgemeant ar complexity, aor areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

financial statements, are disclosed in Mote .
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2022
[zepressad in Barbados dollars)

2. significant accounting policies _continued

a) Basisof preparation _continued
il New standords, amendments and interpretations to existing standords effective in the 2022
financial year

Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ - COVID-19 related rent concessions. Extension of the practical
expedient (effective April 1, 2021)

As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have bean granted to lessees.
Im May 2020, the A58 published an amendment to IFRS 16 that provided an optional practical
expedient for lessees from asses=ing whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a leasa
modification. Cn March 31, 2021, the A58 publishad an additional amendment ta extend the date
af the practical expedient frorm June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022, Lessees can elect to account for
such rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease maodifications. In many
cases, this will result in accounting for the concession as variable lease payments in the period|s)

im which the event or condition that triggers the reduced payment ooours.

ii] New standords, amendments and interpretotions mandotory for the first time for the
financial year beginning April 1, 2027 but not currently relevant to the Group

Amendments to IFRS T IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 - Interest rate benchmark reform - Phase 2
[effectise January 1, 2021).

The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of the reforms,
including the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one. The Phase 2 amendments
provide additional termporary reliefs from applying specific 1A5 29 and IFRS 9 hedge accounting
requirements to hedging relationships directly affected by IBOR reform.

Amandments to IFRE 4 Insurance Contracts - deferral of IFRS 2 (effectise January 1, 2021]

These amandments defer the date of application of IFRS T7 by two years ta January 1, 20235 and
change the fized date of the tempaorary exemption in [FRS & from applying |FRS 9, Financial
imstrument wntil Jamueary 1, 2023,

iii] MWew stondords, amendments and interpretotions to existing staondords that are not yet
effective but will be relevant to the Group

Management has reviewed the new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are mot yet effective and has determined that the following are relevant to the
Group's operations. The CGroup has not early adopted the new standards, amendments and
interpretations nor has the Group as yet assessed their full impsct

A number of narrow-scope amendments to IFRS 3, 1AS 16, 145 T and somea annuzal improvements
an IFRS 1, IFRS 9, 1A5 4] and IFRS 1& [effectiee January 1, 2022).
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2. significant accounting policies _continued
a) Basisof preparation _continued

iii} New standords, omendments and interpretotions to existing standords that are not yet
effective but will be relevant to the Group ...continued

Ameandments to IFRE 3, "Business combinations’ update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual

Frameawork for Financial Reporting without changing the accounting requirements for business
cormbinations.

Amendments to LAS e, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ prohibit a company from dedoecting from
the cost of property, plant and eguipmeant amounts received from selling iterms produced while the
compary is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such salkes
proceeds and related cast in profit or loss

Ameandments to A5 37, "Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets specify which costs
a company includes when assessing whether a contract will be lass-making.

Annual improvements make minor amendments ta IFRS 1, "First-time Adoption of IFRS, IFRS B,

‘Financial instrurments], A5 £1, Agriculture’ and the lllustrative Examples accomipanying IFRS G,
‘Leases’

Amendments to LAS 1, Presentation of financial stabterments’, on classfication of labilities (effective
January 1, 2024).

These narmrow-scope amendments ta AL 1, ‘Presentation of financial staternents’, clarify that
liabilities are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end
of the reporting perod. Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after
the reporting date [for example, the receipt of a waiver ar a breach of covenant]. The amendment
alsz clarifies what 145 1 means when it refers to the 'settlerment’ of a liability. For further details ses
IFRS Manual of accounting para 4830 Mote that the 1ASE has issued a new exposure draft proposing
chamges to this amendmeant

Marroww scope amendments to A5 1, Practice statement 2 and 1AS 3 [effective January 1, 2023).
The amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosures and to help users of the financial
statemeants to distinguish betweaen changes in acocounting estimates and changes in acoounting

policies

Amendment to 18512 - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction
[effectise January 1, 2023).

These amendments require companies o recaognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial
recagnition give rise ta equal amouwnts of taxable and deductibla ternporary differences.
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2. significant accounting policies _continued.

b} Inventories
Irventories are walued at the lower of cost and niet realisable value. Caost is determined on the
weightaed awerage cost method. Provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective iterns.

¢} Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and egquipment are stated at cost less acoumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. Assats
acquired wnder l=ase arrangements are stated at an amourt equal to the lower of fair value and
the presant valus of the minimum kease payments at the inception of the lease, less accurmulated
depraciation and impairment losses. Land is not depreciated.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amaount or recognised as a separate asset,
a5 appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flowe to the Group and the cost of the iterm can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period
im which they are incurred.

Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment is prowvided an a straight-line basis at rates wihich
are expectad to write off the assets owear their estimated useful Ives. The annoal rates used for this

purposs are as fiollows:

Leased assets

VWharves, brealowater and crossberths - %
Administration building - I

Transit sheds and workshops - 4%

Other buildings - 5%

Other assets

Watercraft - % and 5%
Cargo handlfing equipment - 0% and 625%
Marine equipment and navigational aids - L0

Motor wahicles - 2%
Pallets - 3%
Other eguipment and furniture - L0

Port expansion asset - %
Computer equipment - 25%

The aszsets useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the date of each statement of
financial position.

An asset's carmying amount s writben down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable armount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount
These are induded in the staterment of comprehansie income.
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2. significant accounting policies ..continued
d} Foreign currency translation
il  Functionol and presentotion cumency

lterns included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
aconomic ermvironment inwhich the Group aperates [the functional currency’). The financal
statermants are presented in Barbados dollars, which is the Group's functional and presentation

CLITE Ny,
ii] Tronsoctions and bolances

Foreign currency transactions are translated imto the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions, and from the translation of monetary assets and liakbilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates, are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

Mon-monetary iterms that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated wsing
thie exchange rates at tha date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
encampde, tran=lation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair wvalue gain
ar loss, and translation differences on non-maonetary assets such as equities classified as at fair
value through octher comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive income,

&) Taxation

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the date of the statement of financial position. Management pericdically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respeact to situations where applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts eygpacted to
be paid to the tax authorities.

The Group follows the liability method of accounting for deferred taes whereby all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of azsets and lizbilities and their carrying wvalues for
financial reporting purposes are pravided for at the corporation tax rates expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Diefarred tax assets are anly recognised whean it is prabable that taxable income will be available
Zgainst which the assets may be utilised.
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2. significant accounting policies _continued
f} Principles of consclidation
i} Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) ower which the CGroup has contral. The
Group contrals an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its invobvameant with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date onowhich
caontrol is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acguisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the
Croup (refar to nobe 9),

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred assst. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed whera necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Mon-cartrolling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
im the staternant of financial position, staterment of changes in equity and staterment of
comprehensie income.

The Group recognises non-cantrolling interests in an acquired entity either at fair valus or at the
nan-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
This decision is made on an aoguisition-by-acguisition basis. For the non-controlling interest

im One Port Investmenits Inc. the Group elected to recognize the non-controlling interest at its
proportionate share of the acguired net identifiable assets.

i) Changes inownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-contralling interests that do not result ina loss of contral
a5 transactions with equity owners of the Groupe A changes in ownarship interest results in an
adjustment bebween the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests

to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and the consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within eguity attributable to the ocwner.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an imestment because of a loss of
cantrol, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair wvalue, with the change in carrying amaount recognised in income. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
&5 an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recagnised
im other comprahensive income in respect of that entity are accourted for as if the Group had
directhy disposad of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previowshy
recagnised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to income.
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2. significant accounting policies _continued
f} Principles of consclidation _continued
i Changes inownership interests _.continued

If the cwrnership interest i a joint wenture or an assaciate is reduced but joint control or
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recagnised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to income where appropriste.

g} Inwvestment in asscciated company

Aszsociates are entities ocwer which the Croup has significant influence but not control, generally
aocompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Under the equity method of accounting., the imvestrments ane initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
invastes in income or koss, and the Group's share of movemenits in other comprehensive incomea of
the imvestes in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or recenable from associates and
Jjoint wertures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the imsestment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or excesds its interest
im the entity, including any ather unsecured long-term receivables, the Croup does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred cbligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrezslised gains on transactions between the Jroup and its associates and joint wentures are
aliminated ta the extent of the Oroup's interast in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
aliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted imeestees have besn changed where necessary to ensure
cansistency with the policies adopted by the group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted imvestments is tested for impairment in accordance with
thie policy described in note 2 (k).

h) Fimancial investments
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

thosa to be measured at amortised cost, and
thioss to be measured subsequently at fair walue throwgh CCL

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
cantractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in Ol For irestments in
aquity instrurments that are nat held far trading, this will depend on whether the Group has mada
an irrevacable election at thea time of initial recognition to account for the equity ireestrmient at fair
value through other comprehensive income [FWOCIL
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2. significant accounting policies _continued
h} Financial investments _continued

The Group reclassifies debt imvestments when and onlby when its busiress model for managing
thoss assets changes.

i} Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being

the date an which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial as=sets are
derecocgnised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired ar
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
awnership.

i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable ta the acquisition of the financial asset. Subseguent measurement
of debt instruments depends on the Sroup’s business madel for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. Theare are two measurement categories inta which tha
Group classifies its debt instrumeants:

Amartized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, whera those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and inberest, are measured at amortised
cast. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate methed. Ary gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directhy in the statement of comprehensive income and presented in other gains/losses).
Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item in the statement of
cormprehensive income.

FWOCI: Assats that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for salling the
financial assats, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payrments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVCCL Mowerments in the carrying amount are taken throwgh
QCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and lasses, which are recagnised in profit or loss, When the financial asset
iz deracognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the fair value reserve is
reclassified from reserves to retained earnings. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Fareign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/{losses), and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line itam in the statement of comprehensie income.
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2. significant accounting policies ..continued
h} Financial investments _continuead
Equity instruments

The Group subsequenthy measures all equity imsestments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity imvestrments in OCI,
thiere is no subsequent raclassification of fair value gains and losses ta income or loss following
thie derecagnition of the investrmeant. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised
im income or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
Impairment losses [and reversal of impairmeant losses] on equity imvestments measured at

FWCZl are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impoirment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expacted credit loss associated with its debt
instruments carried at amiortised cost and FYOCO, The impairment methodaology applied depends
an whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

ij Employes benafits
The Group operates both a defined benefit and a defined contribution pension plan.
il Defimed contribution plon

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into @ separate entity. For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
administered pension insurance plans. The Group has mo further payment obligations once the
cantributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
whean they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

i)  Defired benefit pilan

A defined benefit plan s any plan cther than a defined contribution plan. The Group operates a
defined benefit pension plan for its employees, the assats of which are held in a separate fund
administered by a Trustes, The scheme is generally funded through payments from the Croup,
ard contributions are determined by full independent actuarial caloulations every three years.

Empioyee bensefits

The ligbility recagnised in the statement of financial pasition in respect of defired benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
pericd bess the fair value of plan assats. The defined benafit obligation is calculated annually by
an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
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2. significant accounting policies ..continued
ij Employee benefits . continued

defined benefit abligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outfloes
using interest rates of high-quality government bonds that are denaminated in the currency in
which the bensfits will be paid, and that hawe terms to maturity appraximating to the terms of
the related pension abligation.

Artuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period
imwhich they arise. Past-zarvice costs are recognised immediately in the staterment of
comprehensie income.

i} Chther post-retirement benefit obigotions

The Group also provides post-retirement medical benefits to their retiress. Fifty percent to
sixty percent of the premium is funded by the Group, dependent on the category of employes.
The entitlerment to thesa benefits is conditional on the employse remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum sarvice period. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of employment wusing the same accounting methodology
a5 used for the Croup's defined benefit pension plan.

11 Revenue recognition

il Cargo hondiing

Revenuwe generated from inbound cargo handling is recognised on the delivery of cargo to the
cansignees or an delivery of auctionad carga to the buyer.

Revenue generated from outibound cargo and ather resenue is recognised on the basis of the
usage of the facilities and services provided by the Croup.

i) Excess storoge

Revenue generated from excess storage is recognised on the basis of the usage of the starage
facilities, which crdinarily exceeds the free storage period at the Part.

i} Marine revenue

Marine revenue is generated aon vessels making a Port call im Barbadaos on the basis of the
length or net registered tonnage of the vessel and is recognised as earmed.

iv] Possenger levy

Passenger levy is applied to the greater of embarking and disembarking passengers per cruise
vessal at the Bridgetown Port and is recognised as earned.
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2. significant accounting policies ..continued
jl  Revenue recognition ...continued
vl Interest income

Interest inCome is recognised in the staterment of comprehansive income on the accrual basis,
using the effectiee interest method.

vil Dividend income
Dividend income is recagnised when the Group’s right to receive payment is establishead,
vii]l Rental income
Rental income is recagnised on an acorual basis.
vili| Chther revenue
Other revenue is recognised on an accrual basis.
k] Impairment of assets

Aszsets that hawve an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment ar more frequenthy if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Asssats that are subject to amortisstion are reviewed for impairment whenewer events

ar changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoreerable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to s=ll
ard value in use. For the purpases of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
far which thare are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflowes from other assets or groups of assats [cash-generating units). Mon-financial assets that
suffered an impairment are reviewead for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporting period.

I} Accountsreceivable

Accounts recenrvable are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course
of business. They are generally due for settlerment within 30 days and are therefare all classified

as current. Accounts receivable are recognised initially at the amount of considaration that is
uncanditional, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group haolds the accounts recerable with
the objectiee of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures thermn subsegquenthy at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

To measure the expacted credit losses, accounts receivable have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
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2. significant accounting policies ..continued
I} Accountsreceivable _continued

The expected |ass rates are based on the payment profiles of =ales over a period of T2 months before
March 31, 2021and the corresponding histarical credit losses experienced within this pericd.

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflact current and forward-looking information on
macrosconomic factors affacting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group
has identified its 100% deposit policy and its monopaolistic position to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical koss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

m) Cash resources and cash and cash equivalents

Cash resources comprise cash and bank balances and short-term depaosits. Cash equivalents
cormprise cash resources with original maturities of three months or less.

n} Accounts payable

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acguired in the
ardinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current labilities if
penyment is due within one year or less, if not, they are presented a5 non-current liabilities. Accounts
pevable are recognized initialhy at fair value and subsequenthy measured at amortised cost wsing the
effective interest method.

o] Long-term loans

Long-term loans are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Long-term
loams are subsequenthy stated at amiortised cost and any difference betweean the net proceeds and
the redemption value is recagnised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of
the long-term loans using the effective interest method. Associated costs are classified as finance
casts in the statement of comprehensive income. Long-term loans due within twehse months of
thie date of the statement of financial position are classified as current liabilities.

General and specific finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ar
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantizlly ready for their intended use. All ather finance costs are recognised
im the staterment of comprehensive income in the period inwhich they are incurred.

Pl Leases
The CGroup leases equipment, watercraft and land.

Corntracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. Tha Group allocates the consideration
in thie contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
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2. significant accounting policies ..continued
Pl Leases.continued

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
caonditions. The lease agreements, except for the eguipment lease, do naot impose any cowenants
ather than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may
nat be used as security for barrowing purpases.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use assst and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased as=at is available for use by the Group.

Aszsets and liabilities arising from a kease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of fixed payments.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the cass for the Group's leases, the Group'’s incremeantal
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the furds
necessary to abtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
arniranment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Whern there has not been recent third-party financing. to datermine the incremental barrowing
rate, the Group:

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Jroup, and
makes adjustments specific to the kease, eg. term and security.

The Group is exposad to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index
of rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to
lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the leasa liability is reassessed and adjustad
Fgainst the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cast. Tha finance cost is charged
to the staterment of comprehensive income over the lease period so0 as to produce a constant

pericdic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lzbility for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measuremeant of lease lability;

any leasa payments made at or before the commencement date less any kease incentives
recajved:

anmy initial direct costs; and
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2. significant accounting policies _continued
Pl Leases.continued

Right-of-use assets are generally depraciated over the sharter of the asset’s useful life and the leasa
term on a straight-line basis.

Extension options are used to maximiss operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used

in the Group's operations. The extension option hald is exercisable onby by the Group and not by the
les=sar. An extension option is included in the Group’s land lease.

q) Provisions
Prowisions are recognisaed when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result
of past ewents, if it is probable that an outflowe of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be madsa.

r] Capital gramts
Grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are capitalised and presanted
im the staternant of financial position as deferred grants. Thesa grants are amortised owver the
enpected usaful lives of the related assets.
Jrants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
ower the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intendead to compensate.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The development of estimates and the exercise of judgement in applying accounting policies may have
a material impact on reported assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. The items which may have a

significant effect on the Croup's financial statements are set out below:

Pension benefits

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post-employment medical benefitsis
determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation imvohes making assumptions about
discount rates, future promotional and inflationary salary increases, proportion of employees opting far
earhy retirement, future chamges in the MIS ceiling and mortality,. Due ta the long-term nature of these
plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncartainty. Assumptions used are disclosaed in note T4




AMMUAL REPORT 2021/22 99

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2oz
[zepressad in Barbados dollars)

4. Cash resources

2022 2021
3 b
Cash at bank TT,ET, 342 14,003,502
Significant concentrations of cash at bank are as follows
2022 2021
£ £
First Citizens Bank [Barbados) Limited {long term issus credit
rating BBB- by Standard & Poors) 75959635 3 546,923

Republic Bank [Barbados] Limited (unrated] 10,072,307 10,e56.5749
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5. Accounts receivable

2022 2021

-1 £

Trade receivables 10,503,107 2E22 TS
Less: loss allowanos [242,743) [734,887]
10,260,364 2187487

The expected credit lossas on trade receivables have been measured as follows:

More than More than More than

30 days 60 days 30 days
Current past due past due past due Total
March 31, 2022
Expected |oss rate 2 6% 2.0 21% 21%
Trade receivables $£4,678,768 £2,441,671 $1,517.5480 1,865,188  £10,503,107
Loss allewance $123,557 £49,263 $31,223 38,710 £242,743
March 31, 2021
Expected loss rate 3% 5% 26.9% IE9%
Trade receivables $471.589 $£20,300 16,562 $1.704,824 82922374
Loss allowance $1.917 72,393 $31.390 $620,187 $734.887
The closing lass allowance for trade receivables as at March 31 reconciles to the opening koss allowance
as folloess:
20232 2021
£ £
Opening loss allowance 734,887 205,183
[Decreaselfincrease in loss allowance recognised
in incorme during the year ) (522045 S35T4
252,745 THLA5T
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectibla ] - (A=
Closing koss allowance 242 743 7348497

The carrying value of accounts receivable is considered to approximate fair value because of their short-
term maturity.

The Group does not hold amy collateral on its accounts recenable.
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6. Other receivables and prepaid expenses

Staff recaivables
VAT receivable
Other

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Mo loss allowance in respect of other recaivables was required in 2022 or 2021

Fuel
Equipment spares
Stationeary

Less: prowision for cbsolescence

The Group did not write off imentory in 2022 or 2021

2022 2021

% &

Z79,635 224 558
1,888,833 1.082715
SO,7T78 7S
2,213,306 1350048
405,519 913,034
2,624,825 2,263,062
2022 2021

$ $

18,041 26,215
7,000,690 £749,323
27,163 7346
7,045,894 6792 B84
[421,228) [421,228)
6,624,666 6,371,656
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8. Financial investments

Financial assets at fair value through OCl
Barbados lce Crearmn Campary Limited (Equities)

At beginning and end of the year

Financial assets at amortised cost

MCEB Capital Markets (Barbados) Limited

Debt Service Reserve Account {note T7)

An=a Finance Lease Reserve Account at First Citizens Bank
Term deposits at Bepublic Bank (Barbados) Limited
Gorvernment of Barbados Series B Bond 2033

120,135

3,735,785

2,855,320

2021

20134

2,305 0953
0a5,000
P
209,083

371283

5,834,417

The Debt Sarvice Reserve Account at MCB Capital Markets [Barbados) Limited is held to facilitate
settlement of the non-current portion of the principal cutstanding and future interest payments on

thie $100 million bond.

The Ansa Finance Lease Reserve Account is being held in connection with a financing lease from Ansa
Merchant Bank. Term deposits at Republic Bank (Barbados) Limited have been pledged as security:

The Gowernment of Barbados Series B Bond comprises of eleven (11 amortising strips. The bond
matures on September 30, 2033 and has the following interest profile: 1.0% per annum far the first

Iyears, 2.5% per annum for year 4 and 3.75% to maturity:

Mo lass allowance on financial imvestrments was reguired in 2022 and 2021

The fair value of financial assets at year end was 33,729 353 (2021 - $3,761,250),
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3. Acqguisition of subsidiary

Oin April 30, 2020 the Company acquired S0% of the issued share capital of One Port Investmeants Inc.,
a real estate investments and dewveloprment company.

Dietails of the purchasa consideration, the net assets acguired and goodwil | were as follows:

The total purchase consideration of $8,000,000 was paid as follows:

2021

$

Cash paid 1500000
The azsets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acguisition were as follows:

Fair

value

$

Cash 435

Other receivables 7.217,569

Capital works in progress 8,741,146

Accrued liabilities (33,500)

Met identifiable assets acquired 15,925,650

Less: nan-controlling interest (7,262,825)

Add: goodwill 37,175

Met assets acquired 8,000,000

Revenuea and profit cantribution

The acquired business contributed nil revenue and a net loss of $98,665 to the Croup for the period
from April 30, 2020 to March 31, 2020
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3. Acqguisition of subsidiary..continued

The cash cutflow was as folloers:

COutflowe of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired

Cash consideration

Less: Balances acquired

Cash consideration

Met outflow of cash - imeesting activities

Acquisition-reioted costs
Acquisition-related costs of $480,000 that were not directhy attributable to the issue of shares were
included in administrative expensas in the staterment of comprehensie income and in operating

cash flows in the staternent of cash flows.

2021

7500000

435

TA90.5e5
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10 Investment in associated compamny

Bridgetown Cruise Terminals, Inc.
TE0,000 Class ‘A common shares [30%)

2022 2021
£ $
Summarised staterment of financial position
Total current assats 4,581,772 1801471
Total non-current assats 1,715 O GED
Total current liabilities 845,830 453,139
Total non-current liabilities - TR
Met assats 3,737,657 1458770
Reconciliation to carrying amounts
Opening net assets April 1 1,558,770 2584 058
Met incomefloss) and total comprebensive income(lioss)
far the year 2,278,887 (1.025,288]
Closing net assets 3,737,657 1458770
Group's share in % 3D% 30%
Group's share in 1,020,297 LTTET]
2022 2021
1 -3
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Revenue T3NS 21,285
Met incomeflossland total comprehensive incomef{loss)
far the year 2,278,887 (1025,288)
Group's share in BA3 666 (307588}
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12. Leases
Amounts recognised at year end
i} Amounts recognised in the statemsant of financial position

The statement of fimancial position disclases the following amounts relating to leases:

2022 202
-1 -1

Right-ocf-use assets
Land 833,333 373333
Watercraft [bugs] ) 2,630,732 2993 50
3,464,065 3,866,024

Lease liabilities

Current 5,538,898 E050 414
Mon-ourrent ] 13,805,824 | 10, 3455 TH2
19,345,722 25,404 136

Included in property, plant and eguipment are assets held under finance leases with a net book
value of $16,954,871 (2021 - $23.857116).

i)  Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

The statement of comprehensive income disdoses the following amounts relating to lesses:

22 2021
£ £

Depreciation and amortisation charge of right-of-use assets
Land 40,000 40,000
‘Watercraft [bugs) ; 362,853 362,860
402,853 02 BE0
Interest expense [included in financa costs) 1,858,243 2761872

Land recognised as a right of usa asset is in respact of the Group's twenty-five-year leass agreemsant
with the Barbadaos Investment and Developrment Corporation to rent a parcel of land. As payment
wias made in advance, there is no related lease lability for this asset.
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12. Leases ..continued

Amounts recognised at year end ..continued

ii)

Amaounts recognised in the statemant of comprehensive income .continued

‘Watercraft recognisad as a right-of-use asset is in respect of the Group's lease with Svitzer
[Barbadias] Ltdl (Svitzer]. In 2014, the Group entered inta a fifteen-year operating lease with Svitzer

far the provision of marine services including the charter of tugs. The related lease lability is
dizclosed in this note.

On March 14, 2004 the Group entered into a finance lease, which had been arranged and financed
through ANSA Merchant Bank Limited for the purchase of operational equipment. The face valus
of the lease in respect of Tranche 1and 2 was US$23,396,484 which represented 100% of the cost
of the equipment being leased. The lease bears interest at the rate of T.25%, with a moratorium on
principal and interest payments for the first 18 maonths, during which interest is capitalised.

Existing manthly lease payments of $358 182 commenced on Novermber 11, 2015, The lease is
securad by a letter of comfort from the Sovermment of Barbados, a charge over the Ansa Finance
Lease Reserve Account, a one time assignment of US$2.12 million in revenues and a sale option
agreament which will entitle the lessor to require the Sovernment of Barbados to purchase the
equipment at a fixed price in the event of default by the Group. Deeds of security of USHI3.48
million are in place in favour of First Citizens Trustee Services Limited.

On Cctober 4, 2017 the Croup entered into an agreement for Tranche 3 of the existing lease
zgreement. The face value of the mew tranche is USE11,898,750, which represents 100% of the cost
of the equipment being leased. The lease bears interest at the rate of 8.00%, with a moratoriam
an principal and interest payments for the first 18 months, during which interest is capitalised. The
related lease liability is disclosad in Naote 18,

Thie total cash outflow for leases in 3022 was $68,050,414 (2021 - $15,701,623)
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13. Capital works in progress

Berth &
project Other Total
£ £ £

At March 31, 2020
Cost 14,308,150 1688673 15.976,823
Year ended March 31, 2021
Qpening net book amount 14, 308,150 1668578 15.5976,828
Additions - T7.9093,085 T7.993 085
Tramsfers to property, plant and equipment - {850, 103] {(MA50, 03]
Expensed - (50,551 (50,591
Closing net book amount 14, 308,150 TEE0.9E8 219919
At March 31, 2021
Cost 14 308,150 TEe0,9ES 2185319
year ended March 31, 2022
Jpening net book amaount 14,308,150 TERD9E0 21,9529
Additions - Tr&T7797 TR&TT 07
Tranmsfars to property, plant and equipment - (13,2001, 335] [13, 201, 335)
Expensed - (201, 7ET] (2007817
Closing net book amownt T4, 308,150 N, 735,643 26,043,733
At March 31, 2022
Cost 14, 308,150 N, 735,645 26,043,733

On May 23, 2017, the Group entered into a contractual agreement for the construction of Barth & and
related projects at a cost of $189,001,293, By letter dated June 22, 2078, the Croup was instructed by its
shareholder to put matters related to this propect on hold. Following a valuation of the warks performed
under the agreement, $5,691,850 was written off of the total costs incurred of $20,000.000.
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1. Retirement benefit obligations

The Group maintained a non-contributony defined benefit plan with the Insurance Corporation of Barbados
Limited urtil Movernber 30, 2005, Employees wene eligible ta join that plan on Januwary 1 following one year’s
continuous service. The Group withdrew from this Statutory Corporation Pension Fund (5CPF) in order to
establish a new plan in keeping with the requirements of the Barbados Port Inc. (Transfer of Mansgement
and Vesting of Assets) Act 2003, The Group created a new Defined Banafit [DB) Plan for employees who
wera previously part of the SCPF, as well as a Defined Contribution (OC) Plan for new employees.

Thea Group also offers post-retirsmeant medical benefits to its ernployees, pensionars and their dependents.
These medical benefits are offered under a scheme which is insured with an insurance provider. Period-end
surplus and obligations are as follows:

202 2021

5 %

Pension plan 4,302,248 6,002 55 g
Post-retirement medical benefits (5, 133,0:%5]) (5,409 746]
[230,737) B12798

Pension plan

The amaounts recagnised in the statemeant of financial position for the pension plan asset are as follows

2022 2021

£ £

Present value of funded obligations (60,216,048 62,238,313

Fair value of plan assets 80,719,795 T, el G402

Effect of asset ceiling (15,601,533) 18,1293, 585]

Pension plan asset 4902 248 o022 54
Changes in the present value of funded aobligations are as follows:

2022 2021

£ £

Present value of funded obligations - beginning of ywear 62,238,313 1,494 922

Current service cost 1,078,647 1152668

Interest cost b, 7 53,2006 & 59 561

Banefits paid [%.331,813) (& 222627}

Actuarial gains on retirement benefit obligations (3,508,305) {E73,21)

Present value of funded obligations - end of year 80,206,048 62 F38 313
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T4

Retirement benefit obligations __continued
Pension plan _cortinued

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Plan assets - beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Contributions - total

Banefits paid

Plan assets - end of yvear

Mowarmeants in the net asset recognised in the staterment of financial position:

Met asset fliability] - beginning of year

Contributions paid

Expense recagnised in the statement of comprehensive
income

Actuzrial [loss) gains recognised in the staterment of other
comprehensie income

Met asset - end of year

Expense recagnised in the statement of comprehensive income;

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected returm on plan assets
Interest an effect of assset ceiling

Actual return on plan assets

2022 2021

1 £
76,460,442 60,067,594
7,614,296 5,013,760
576,870 156001715
(4.331,813) [4.222.627)
80,713,735 76,460,442
2022 2021

% $
6,022,544 (1,815,338
976,870 15,6001715
[657,641) (1553127
(1,:433,525) 3789253
4,502,258 6077 544
2022 2021

% $
1,078,657 1152668
4,733,206 4,591 561
(5.735.680) (5,096,175
635,468 A05.070
657,641 1,553,121

— 6k, 2096 G0N 750
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1. Retirement benefit obligations ._continued
Pension plan _cortinued

Expenseflincome] recognised in other comprehensive income

2022 2021
£ ¢
Gain from change in assumptions 112,541 -
Actuarial gains on retirement benefit obligations 2,395,765 B7B.2M

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in
interest expensa 1,818,615 (22 419)
Effect of IFRIC 14 - T ISZ.081
Effect of asset ceiling |6, 766, %%5) 18,192, 5B5)
[1,433,525) 788,233
2022 2021
) ]

Plan assets are comprised as follows:

Bands 34T 348
Equitias 463 415
Cleposits 8.8 153
Other assets 102 105
Met assets 100.0 0.0

Throwgh its defined berefit pension plan, the Oroup is exposed to a number of risks, the mast
significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility

The plan lizbilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to Government of Barbadas
bond yields: if plan assets underparformm this yield, this will create a deficit. The plan holds a significant
proportion of equities, which are expected to outperform government bonds in the long-term while
providing wolatility and risk in the short-term.

The pension investment committee invests the funds for the defined benefits section of the plan
and amends the ass=et allocation as necessary to meet the objectives. The bonds held by the plan
represent primarily ireestmients in Government of Barbados securities. There are limited

5% (2021 - %) imvestments in corporate bonds.

The Group believes that due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, a level of continuing equity
irvastment is an appropriate element of the Group's long-term strategy to manage the plan efficiently.
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1. Retirement benefit obligations ..continued

Pension plan _continuead

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in Covernment of Barbados bond yields will increase plan liabilities, althowgh this will bs

partially offsat ey an increase in the value of the plan's bond holdings.

Life expactoncy

The primary abligation of the plan is to provide benefits for the life of the member. As such, increases
i life expectancy will result in an increase inthe plan's liabilities. & sensitivicy analysis of changes in life

expectancy indicates this risk is not very material.

Expected contributions for the vear ending March 31, 2023 are $1,137,295.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan is T125 (2022 - 12.36) years.

Expected maturity anahysis of undiscounted pension benefits:

Less Between Between

than a year 1-2 years 2-5 yBars

£m £m £m

Pension benefits = ) G40 1422

Primcipal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes were;

Discount rate
Future promational salary increases
Future inflaticnary salary increasas

Proportion of employees opting for early retirement

Future changes in MIS ceiling
Mortality

5 years
£m

70

8.25
200
200
1000
350

Total
£m

5108

2021

775
200
300

10.00
350
AA
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1. Retirement benefit obligations ..continued
Pension plan _continuead
Life expectancy _continued

The sensitivity of the present value of funded obligations to changes in the weighted principal
assumptions is as follows:

Impact on present value of funded obligations

Change in Increase in Decrease im

assumption assumption assumpticmn

Discount rate 1% (5,235,360 SR
Salary growth rate 0.5% 1,834,195 [1.e82 %36)
Life expectancy 1year 3393905 n'a

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assurmption while holding all ather
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to ocour, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be carrelated. When calculating the sensitivity of the obligations to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the funded obligations caloculated with the projectad
unit credit method at the end of the year) has been applied as whien calculating the pension plan
liability recognised within the staterment of financial position

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity anakysis did not change
comparad to the previous year.

The amaounts recagnised in the staterment of financial position for the post-retirement medical benefits
are as follows:

2022 2021
s £
Present value of funded obligations 5,133,045 L.409748

The Group fully funds the post-retirement medical benefits as there are no plan assets.
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1. Retirement benefit obligations ..continued
Paost-retirement medical benefits

Changss in the presant value of funded obligations are as follows

2022 2021

k3 $

Present value of funded obligations - beginning of year 5403, T4E E.24TE23
Current service cost 173,353 175,076
Imterest cast £27,9M 415,170
Past service cost - vested benefits - 85743
Banefits paid [135,305) (131,165]
Actuarial gains on obligations ) [748,660]) [FE0.E1T)
Present value of funded obligations - ernd of year 5,133,045 S 05 TSE

Mowarments in the net liability recognised in the statement of financial position:

2022 2021
£ £
Met liability - beginning of year 5,403,746 E.24TE23
Contributions paid [135,305) (131,1e5)
Expense recagnised in the statement of comprehensive incomes GOT,265% a73,9859
Actuarial gains recognised in the statermment of other
comprehensive income i (748,660) [ZB0.61T]
Met liability - end of year S133,04%5 S 03,746
Expense recagnised in the statement of comprehensive income:
2022 2021
£ £
Current service cost 179,353 175,076
Imterest cost £ 7 ST L5170
Past service cost - vested benefits : - 233743

607,264 573,089
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1. Retirement benefit obligations ..continued
Post-retirement medical benefits _continued

The effact of a 1% movement in the assumed medical cost trend is as follows:

Increase Decrease

$ £

Effect an funded obligations 743,108 512,032
Principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes were;

20232 2021

o ki

Discount rate B.25 775

Medical cost inflation 4,00 400

Proportion of employees opting for early retirement 10,00 .00

The amaunts recagnised in the statemant of financial position and the statement of comprehensive
income for pension and octher post-retirement benefits are determined actuarially using several
assumptions. The primary assumpticns used in determining the amounts recognised are disclosed
abowve along with an analysis of the sensitivity of thess assumptions.

The discount rate is determined based on the estimate of yield on long-term Covernment Bonds that
hawve maturity dates approimating the terms of the Group’s obligation. The estimate of expected rate
af change in the Mational Insurance Schame ceiling iz determined based on inflationany factors. Ay
chamges in these assumptions will impact the amounts recorded in the financial staterments for these
albligations.

It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the nest financial year
that are different from these assumptions could reguire 2 material adjustment to the carrying amount
reflected in tha financial staterments.
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15. Deferred tax asset

Diefarred tax asset [OTA) - beginning of year

Effect of remeasurement of OTA broughit forward

thraugh income [mote 23)

Effect of remeasurement of OTA broughit forward throwgh QCI

Diefarred tax charge [nobe 23]
Deferred tax credit/{charge) relating to components of
ather comprehansive income

Cieferred tax asset - end of year

The deferred tax asset consists of the following compaonents:

Dielayed tax depreciation

Unutilised tax loss (note 24)

Retirerment benefit liability[asset] [note 14)
Qualifying capital expenditure [note 24)
Loss allowance

Right-of-use a=sset

Diefarred tax asset at effective corparation taex rate of
2.06% (2021 - 3. 68%)]

2022 1

$ 3
1,242,047 2802835
60,760 1.37015)
(25,745) 220,297
1,377,062 1653007
AZrnin [(333.204)
14,243 [7776E]
1,116,148 ]‘2.41{}4?
2022 2021

$ $
41,647,367 &TTE3 IS8
10,465,646 10,508,565
230,797 [E12798)
1,351,9M TO5E 564
243,743 734887
176,320 151,432
54,114,784 66,520,108
1,106,148 ]‘Hlﬂq_?

The expiry dates of the unutilizad tax loss and gualifying capital expenditure are disclosad in note 24.
The ather temporary differences have no expiry dates,
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16. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

2022 2021
£ £

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 5,049,614 1307404
Accrued liabilities 4 200,796 T 4TEIEZ
5,245,910 4 783 585

17. Long-term loans
2022 2021
£ £
Barbados Port Inc. Corporate Bonds - $100M 100,000,000 100,000,300
Less current portion [8,425,091) -
91,570,303 100,000,000

The bonds were issued through MCB Capital Markets (Barbados) Limited for the purposs of refinancing
existing loans and working capital management. The bonds are comprised of three tranches with
interest rates of £2%, 5.0% and 5.5% with a moratorium on principal payment for the first 2 years.

The bonds are secured by a debenture in fawour of the Barbados Central Securities Depository Inc

an behalf of the bondholders, owver the fized and floating assets of the Group stamped to covear
$100,000,000, and a charge over the Debt Service Reserve Account funded at $2, 370,000,

The fair value of the Croup’s fixed rate borrowings was 591,681,229 (2021 - $89960133] at the end of
thi wear.

At its board meeting on September 14, 2001, via resolution, the directors agreed to the listing of the
corporate bonds on the Barbados Stock Exchange. As of year end the prospectus in connection with
the listing had not yet been issusad.

Additionally, on December 30, 2021, the Group signed off on financing of up to BDS $10:0,000,000 with
Inter-Armmerican Investrmeant Corporation (as lender of the IDE Imvast Loan). To date, no disbursements
hawve been received.
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18. Share capital

Autharisad
The Compamy s authonsaed to issue an unlimited number of common shares without nominal or par value

I=sued
2022 2021
£ -4
100 {20321 - 100) commaon shares, stated valua 100 120

13. Capital contributions

Capital comtributions made by the sole sharehaolder, the Covernment of Barbados, comprise the following:

Value of leased assets of 342 310,845 |ess long-term loan

obligations of $28, 229630 at January 1, 1972, under the

lease agreement with the Crown 14,081,215 14,081,215
“Yalue of the other assets less ather liabilities of the former Port

Department and Part Contractors (Barbadas) Limited at Januany 1,

1979, transferred to, or assurmed by Barbados Port Inc, less the

amount of $100,000 allocated to the Part Fund as established under

Section Til) of the Barbados Port Authority Act, Cap. 285H. 15,063,865 15,062, B85
Capital transfer - Berth 5 Project _ 49,538,200 49 533,200
78 280 TE&H

Leased assets and long-term obligations under lease agreement with the State [formerly the Croem).

3] The freehold land and buildings and the static fadlities at the Part of BEridgetown belorging to the
State (formerly the Crown) (othier than the land and buildings and related wharf facilities of the bulk
handling facility] which were valued at $42 310,845 at January 1, 71979 are baing leased for a period of
50 years from January 1, 1979 at a yearly rent of $100.

B Under the terms of the lease agreement, the Port will have the option to renew the lease far a
furthier term of 50 years from the expiration of the original lease period and will be responsible for
the maintemance and insurance of the leased assets and for the payment of property taxes thereon,
ard will receive the income from the subletting of ary part or parts of the properties.
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13. Capital contributions ...continued

20,

g

Under the terms of the lease agreement, the Port also undertook to reimburse the State [farmerly
thie Crown) for the debt servicing assurmed by the State (formerhy the Crown) inconnection with
Loan Cantract dated February Z1, 1975 and made between the Government of Barbados and
Inter-american Development Bank for a loan of US$2 100,000 or the eqguivalent thereof in other
currencies, to partially finance the Project for the Expansion and Improverment of the Port of
Bridgetown; and to assume the liability to the State (formerly the Crown) for long term loans made
by thea State (formerly tha Crowen) for the construction of the Deep Water Harbour which amounted
to 33,320,236 and 35,702,394 at January 1, 1979, This loan was fully repaid in 1994

Since the terms of the lease transactions are significantly affected by the relationship bebween the Port
and the State (formery the Crowen), the economic substance rather than the legal form of the lease has
b=en recognised by the Croup in its accounting treatment of the capital lease, and the actual cost of, or
values assigned to the leased assets and the actual related long-term obligations under the l=ase have
b=en reflected in its financial staterments with the esacess of the cost of or values assigned to leasad
assets over the loan obligations being shown as a capital contribution by the Government of Barbados.

In carrespondence from the Cirectar of Finance and Economic Affairs to the Accountant-General in
2006, it was detailed that funding recersead from the Latin American Developmeant Bank [CAF) was
to be appropriated as a capital transfer to Barbadaos Port Inc. The purposs for the funds was

to construct an extension to Berth & and yachting facilities.

Revenue - other

2022 2021

i £

Bulk handling terminal 602,260 o 0917
Auction sales - 185,245
Garbage disposal B27.3N B4, 482
Security services 6,856,076 &, 102,750
Taxi and touwr buses registration TOE, 2810 orr20
Miscellan=eous revenus 1,823,300 -
Phioto identification 43,131 42 17

___ 0255419 7681435




122 BARBADOS PORT IMC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2022
[zepressad in Barbados dollars)

2L

23,

Expenses by nature

Staff costs [note 23]

Repairs and maintenance

Lhilities

Adhvertising and promotions

Depreciation {note T1)

Amaortization of right-of-use assets (note 12)
Insurance

Profes=sional fees

Rent expense

Other

Payraoll costs and benefits
Pension expenses

- defined bemafit

- defined contribution
Post-retirement medical benefits

Taxation

Current tax charge
Diefarred tax charge [note 15)

2022 2021
5 $
37,283,818 35,737,009
6,687,981 5.ET0664
2,947,942 2443067
91,127 55,705
17,279,624 17,013,056
402,855 402,860
2,084,863 1732972
1/6-%3,122 10652710
73,226 108,324
7,553,816 B325529
76,054,378 72,573,086
2022 2021

5 $
35,701,549 3324375
657,651 1,553,141
317,364 266,184
607,264 673989
37,263,818 35,757,009
2022 2021

$ $

55,327 -
4,403 1705152

163,730

1,705,152
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23. Taxation ..continued

The tax on the Group’s incomefloss) before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the basic tax rate as follows:

2022 2021
£ £
Incomefloss] before taxation 13,388,250 (104, 555)
Taxation calculated at 5.5% 1,066,353 (5,756}
Effect of chamge in tax rate during the year on ocpening
deferred tax balance (160, 7E0) 1,374,204
Tax effect of rate at which deferrad tax asset is computed (1,608,028) (BC1,293])
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,174,402 127832
Income nat sulbject to tax (37.602) -
Tax effect of sliding =cale tax rates [Z72) -
[Cverlfunder prowision of prior year deferred tax [26%,363) MOES
163,730 1705152

24 Unutilised tax loss and qualifying capital expenditure
Unutilised tax loss

The tax losses of the Group which are available for set off against future tazable income for corporation

tax purpases are as follows
wear of Tax byffwd Adjustment Tax cffwd Expiry
income % £ £ date
2021 10,506 685 (41.059) 0465546 2028

The tax losses are as computed by the Group in its corporation tae returns and hawve as yet neither baen
canfirmed nar disputed by the Barbados Resenue Authority.

Qualifying capital expenditure
In accordance with the Barbados Port Inc. [Exemption from Ta=ation] Act, 2011-21 the Company is

granted incomsa tax concessions in respect of expenditure of a capital nature on the expansion or
dewelopment of the Port. The approved capital expenditure available for deduction is as follows




12%4 BARBADOS PORT IMC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2022
[zepressad in Barbados dollars)

24 Unutilised tax loss and qualifying capital expenditure ..continued

Year of Byffwed Utilised Incurred Cffwed Expiry

income £ $ -1 5 date

23 G603,274% 1e03,274) - -

2019 3,200,025 (3,201,025) % t

2020 Q0n,a72 {200,972 - -

2021 3245 7% 13,245,293) - -

202F - (11,604, 758) 12956570 1,551,89M F0]
TO55 Sed (19,561,323 12,8955 670 1.551,59M

25. Fimancial risk managerment
a) Fimancial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to avariety of financial risks: market risk [including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liguidity risk

This note presents information about the Croup's exposure to each of the above risks, the Croup’s
abjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s managemeant
of capital. Further guantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk managerment frarmework.

The Group's risk management polices are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
thie Group, set appropriate risk limits and contrals, and monitor riskes and adherence to imits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewesd regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Croup’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aimis to dewelop a disciplined and structured envircnment inowhich all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

il  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its haldings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retwrn.
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25. Fimancial risk management ..continued
a) Financial risk factors _.continuad
il Market risk ..continued
il Currency risk

The Group's exposure to currency risk arises from purchases that are denominated inoa
currency other than the functional currency of the Group mainky the US Dollar and from the
U5 Dollar denominated long-term loan which it holds. This risk is howewver considered not
to be significant as the U5 Dollar is fixed with the Barbados dollar.

2 Interest rote risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair valus interest rate risk is the
risk that the fair value of a financial instrurmant will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group's term deposits, lease liabilities and long-term loans are issued at fized rates
and hence limit the Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk. Management revienws
the rates an a regular basis along with the cost of putting alternative financing in place to
determine the most cost-effective source of borrowings.

At the reporting date the interest rate prafile of the Croup’s interest-bearing financial
instruments was as follows

Fixed rate instruments
2022 2021
% $
Financial as=sts 3,735,785 3714283
Financial iabilities 9,355,722 125 404135
3} Price risk

The Group is not significantly exposed to price risk arising frorm changes in equity prices.
i fit rich
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The

Group's credit risk arises principally frormn cash resources, receivables from customers and financial
assets at amortised cost.
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25. Fimancial risk management ..continued
a) Financial risk factors _.continuad
i) Credit risk ..continued

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposura. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reparting date was

2022 2021
% % % %
Cash resources 17,671,542 5215 T, 003 B0 ESBE
Arccounts recenabla 10, 260,36% 30,27 2187 487 1025
Other receivables 2,213,306 6.55 1350948 B3G

Financial investments [financial
assets at amortised cost) 3,733,785 M.O03 3714285 1747
23,891,357 To0.00 21256220 100000

Trode and other receivobies

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
custamer. The Croup's revenue is attributable to customers” credit sales and the demographics
of the customers’ geographical location, including default risk of the industry and the country
imwhich customers operate. Credit is granted to authorised shipping agents only who are
registered in a prescribed manner, and who are mandated to provide a bond through a financial
imstitution as security to the Group. Additionally, shipping agents are normally required to pre-
pary @ depasit of one hundred and ten (110] percent of thie anticipated revenue per ship visit. This
has the effect of significantly reducing credit riske

Management has instituted standard repaymment periads for credit sales and monitors each
receivable balamce on a weekly basis with regard to credit sales granted and payments received,

Fimaorncial investments [finaonciol ossets ot amortised cost)

All of the entity’s debt investments at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk. No
loss alkrwance was considered necessary in 2022 or 2021
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25. Fimancial risk management ..continued

a) Financial risk factors _.continuad

i} Liguidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and cash eguivalents
ard the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet reasonable expeactations of short-term abfigations. Where mecessary, management
seals to rensgotiate repayment terms on lang term kbans. The Group's liguidity management
inwalves projecting cash flows and monitoring statement of financial position ratios.

The table below analkyses the Group’s financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining pericd at the date of the staterment of financial position
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractusal
undizcounted cash flowes. Balamces due within T2 months equal their carryving balances as
the impact of discounting = not significant
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25. Fimancial risk management ..continued
a) Financial risk factors _.continuad
iv] Fair volue of finoncial instruments

Financial instrurments carried at fair value in the fimancial statements are measured in
socordance with a fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 - unadjusted quaoted prices in active markets for identical instrumeants.

Level 2 - inputs other than gquoted prices in Level 1 that are observablea for the instrurment,
aither directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - inputs for the instrument that are not based on observable market data and
financial assets carried at amortised cost.

A fimancial instrurment is regarded as quoted in an active market if qguoted prices are readily and
regularhy available from an exchange or other independent source, and those prices represent
actual ard regularly cocurring market transsctions on an arm's length basis. The Group
cansiders that market transactions shiould acour with sufficient frequency that is appropriate
far the particular market, when measured owver a continuous pericd preceding the date of

thie financial statements. If there is no data available to substantiate the frequency of market
tran=actions of a financial instrument, than the Group does not consider the instrument to be

traded in an active market.
b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value amounts represent estimates of the consideration that would currently be agreed upon
between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act and is best evidenced

by a guoted market price, if one exists.

The Group's equity sacurities in the Barbadas lce Creamn Group Limited was designated a Leval 3
financial asset. There was no movement in these securities for the year.

The Group's financial assets and liabilities as disclosad in the staternent of financial position are

cansidered by management to approeimate their fair value except for financial assets at amortised
cast and long-term loans, the fair values of which are designated as level 3 and disclosed in notes

BandI17.

c)] Capital risk management
The Group manages lease liabilities, long-term loans and equity as capital. The Board's policy is
to maintain a strong capital basa so as to maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain

future development of the business.

There were no changes to the Sroup's approach to capital management during the year.
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26. Contimgent liabilities

As of March 31, 2022 and 2021, there exist a number of legal claims against the Group, the outcome of
which could not be determined with reasonable certainty. Mo provision for any Bability that may result
has been made in thess financial staterments. Settlement, If any, concerning these claims, will be
recarded in the periad in which they are realised.

The Croup has bonds in favour of the Comptroller of Customs in the amount of $20,000 and China
Harbour Engineering Company Limited [CHEC] in the amount of $100,000. During the yvear, the bond
im fawvaour of CHEC was returned as the associated project was put on hold

7. Related party transactions

1  The following transactions were carried out with the associated company during the year:

2022 200

£ $
Purchase of leasshold improvements 3,500,000 -
Security service charge 21,010 87152

2]  Key managemsnt

202 20

£ £

Diractors fees 90,000 BB.500
Salaries and other employes bensfits 2,553 886 2557 643

There were no transactions with entities which have common directors of the Group.
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2B Operating leases

The Group sublets parts of the property it lkeases from the State (formerhy the Crown). The future
minimum lease payments recerable under terms of the leases are as follows:

Less than one year
Batween one and five years
More than 5 ywears

During the year $1,.905,101 (2021 - $1.4132,001) was recognised as rental income in the staterment of

comprehensie income.

29 Cash flow information

a) Met debt reconciliation

Cash resources

Financial investments [financial assets at amortised cost)
Current portion of long-term loans

Long-term loans

Current portion of leass labilities

Lease liabilities

Met dabt

Cash and finandal imeestments

Long-term loans and lease liabilities

2022 2021
% £
3,002,833 1,605 317
2,4%5%,352 2472352
12,627,072 13227160
2022 2021
3 3
17,671,342 14, 003 502
3,733,785 3714283
[B,523,051) -
[91,570,9039) (100,000,000
[S.538,898) (&,052,414)
(13,805,824) (12, 344722
(37,932,935) (17.E5EE,351)
21,4, 727 17T1T78S
(113, 344,722) (125,404,135
[97.932,9395) (W07 58E,351)
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0. COVID-12

The autbreak of COVID-18 in the first guarter of 2020, and measures taken subzeguently by
governments to comtain the virus resulted in travel and border restrictions, guarantines, supphy chain
disruptions, lower consumer demand and general market uncertainty which have impacted ecanomic
activity and the demand for the Group's service offerings. The extent and duration of the impact of
COWID-12 on the global and local economies and the sectars inwhich the Group and its customers
ard suppliers operate remains uncertain at this time.

The Group primarily operates as the primary entry point for goods into Barbadaos. For the year anded
March 31, 2022, cargo activity returned to pre-pandemic levels but cruise activity is still recovering.

As of July 20, 2022, managemeant was not aware of amy significant adwerse effects an the financial
statermeanits for the yvear ended March 31,2022 as a result of COVID-19.
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